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FINANCIALHIGHLIGHTS FOR 1988

Operating revenues
Net income (loss)
Earnings (loss) per share
Average shares outstanding
Declared dividends per share
Total assets

Electric sales - own territory (kwh.)
Natural gas firm sales

(thousands of cubic feet)
Electric customers (average)
Firm gas customers (average)

1988
$ 438,385,000

$43,804,000
$2.63

14,473,000
$ 1.715

$ 1,046,290,000
4,583,788,000

8,279,000
244,165

53,687

1987

$429,077,000
$ (109,944,000)

$ (8.12)
14,230,000

$2.645
$ 1,024,371,000

4,354,902,000

7,403,000
237,843

51,911

Change
2%

140%
132%

2%

(35%)
2%
5%

12%

3%
3%
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Shareholders Meeting

The annual meeting of holders of common stock willbe held on
Tuesday, April4, 1989, at 10:30 a.m.,at the South Avenue office of the
Company in Poughkeepsie,:New York. Notice of this meeting, together
with the proxy statement, proxy, and this Annual Report, was mailed
to shareholders on March 3, 1989. The management welcomes the
personal attendance of shareholders at the meeting.

Additional Information
Shareholders may obtain, without charge, a copy of Central Hudson's
annual report to the Securities and Exchange Commission, on Form
10-K, by writing to: Gladys L. Cooper, Secretary, at the Corporation's
general offices. A comprehensive statistical supplement to the Company's
1988 annual report, containing key financial an'd operating results for
a 10-year period, willbe available soon upon request to Ms. Cooper.
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General Office: 284 South Avenue
Poughkeepsie, NY 12601-4879

Telephone (914) 452-2000



Theodore J. Carlson John L. Mack 111

Dear Friends:

In this, my last Annual
Report letter to you, I want to
convey my appreciation to you
for the opportunity I have had

to serve as Chairman of the
Board and for your support
throughout the years.

I have been Chairman of
Central Hudson for 14 years

and, while we have had many
difficulties during that period,
it has been an extremely
rewarding time, and I believe

we have enjoyed great progress
and success during this period.

The major difficulties, of
course, were the problems
which resulted from the oil
embargo in the early 1970s

and the consequent incredible
increase in the price of oil. This
was reflected in our rates to
our customers and produced
an atmosphere of criticism
which, in turn, was reflected in
the political and regulatory
response which was negative to
our business.

The second problem was

the long road leading to the
completion of the Nine Mile 2

nuclear plant, and its attend-
ant costs.

As to oil prices, we are

very pleased that the price of
oil itself has come down

remarkably, but more signifi-
cantly, we took those steps

which were necessary to
diversify our fuel supply. In
1975 we were dependent to the
extent of 97% on foreign oil for
our generation of electricity.
Through the conversion of two
of our units at Danskammer to
permit the use of coal; through
the use of gas; through the
extension of our hydro
facilities; and through our
participation in Nine Mile 2, we
have reduced our dependency
on foreign oil to 43%. This has

been real progress.
As to our Nine Mile 2 project,

it is now in commercial
operation, and considering the
difficulties of many other
nuclear plants throughout the
country, this was a real ac-

complishment. As the years go

by, I believe the plant will
prove to be a real benefit to our
customers, and to New York
State generally.

In the meantime, our area,

which is one of the outstanding
areas of the country in terms of
natural beauty and cultural
resources, continues to grow.
We have a large geographic
franchise area, and over the

years with growth in customers
I cannot help believing that
our Company is going to
become much larger and

more profitable.
The utility industry by the

nature of its business has been

involved in all the important
issues of our time, and it is our
privilege to have made contri-
butions towards the resolution
of these issues, political,
societal and technological.

As I leave, one of my greatest
satisfactions is in the manage-

ment which is now directing
the affairs of the Company,
and I especially want to pay
tribute to Mr. John E. Mack III,
who has had an outstanding
tenure as, President. Under his

leadership as Chairman of the
Board, I see a bright future
for Central Hudson.

With my thanks to each one

of you, and my warmest best

wishes, I am

Very truly yours,



ENERGY STRATEGY

The successful commercial
operation of the Nine Mile 2

nuclear plant in the spring of
1988 marked the completion of
our Energy Strategy for the 80s,

and with it our goal of providing
customers with reliable, afford-
able energy from a variety of

. sources. The Company's 9%

share of Nine Mile 2 provides us

with 97 megawatts of electricity
produced by low-cost nuclear
fuel at savings to our customers
and with reduced impacts on
the environment.

Our ability to provide an

adequate supply of reasonably
priced energy in the years ahead

is one of the keys to continued
economic growth in the Mid-
Hudson Valley, and it is on this
growth that our own future
success depends. While we

entered the decade depending
on imported fuel oil for 95%

of our electric generation, we

prepare to leave itwith a

diversified fuel mix of 43% oil,
33% coal, 11% natural gas, 9%

nuclear and 4% hydro sources.
In the years ahead, we intend to
continue to improve our ability
to provide competitively priced
electric energy for our cus-

tomers, for it is clear that
maintaining competitive prices
benefits our stockholders also.

Already the benefits of this
strategy are reflected in our
rates, which are now below the
average for New York State.
Nationally, we have gone from
among the 10 most costly

utilities to 42nd. And the long-
term benefits are assured

because we have no need to
build new generation until
sometime in the next century.

The implication of this last
statement seems to be that
Central Hudson serves a stag-

nant area. Far from it! The area

we serve is one of the fastest

growing in the state, and our
growth in electric usage is

considerably higher than the
national average. New electric
capacity willbe needed to serve

this demand, but rather than
building new facilities, we
envision meeting our

customers'eeds

in a more innovative
manner as part of our Energy
Strategy for the 90s.

The Roseton Buyback
Agreement

We presently own 35% - or
420 megawatts - of the 1,200-

megawatt Roseton Generating
Plant. Under the terms of the
original ownership agreement,
we have the option in the year
2004 of purchasing the interests
of the other cotenants, Niagara
Mohawk and Consolidated
Edison. Our plans now, however

(subject to the approval of the
Public Service Commission), are

to purchase Niagara Mohawk's

300 megawatts in 10 equal
installments, beginning in 1995,

at a total price of $36 million.
In the year 2004, Niagara
Mohawk would have the option
of re-purchasing this capacity.

We, in turn, would balance this
at that time with the purchase

1988 FUEL MIX
(Capabilities)
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Providing quality service to major
industrial customers requires the talents
ofpeople like Paul Vinett (right),
Supervisor, Hi-Tech Services, shown
conferring tvith IBM's Poughkeepsie Site
Energy Coordinator Steve Machl'ish.



of Con Edison's interest in
the plant, which amounts to
480 megawatts.

Not only does the buyback
from Niagara Mohawk provide
us'with the ability to meet the
growing needs of our customers,
it does so at a cost far less than
any conceivable alternative. Our
studies indicate that it is $ 1.25

billion less than new coal-fired
capacity; $300 million less than
new gas turbine capacity; and

$ 130 million less than gas-fired
combined cycle capacity.

Hydroelectric Improvements

During 1988, the three
penstocks at the Sturgeon Pool
Plant were replaced after more
than half a century of service.
These 10-foot diameter steel

pipes carry water from the
reservoir to the generating
plant. The $2 million project
willhelp extend for many years
the life of this 15,000-kilowatt
plant. During 1989 and 1990, we
plan additional improvements at
both Sturgeon Pool and the
nearby Dashville Hydroelectric
Plant to increase their efficiency
and extend their operating life.

Gas As A Boiler Fuel

There remain potential
opportunities to reduce our
dependence on foreign oil. One
of these is the conversion of the
Roseton Generating Plant to
burn natural gas. To this end, we
have reached agreement with a

group of potential suppliers to
provide 100 million cubic feet of
gas a day during the non-heating

season at times when
natural gas is less costly than
fuel oil. Further planning in this
regard, however, awaits the
completion of proceedings
before the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission on
proposals to increase the supply
of gas in the Northeast. (See
"Natural Gas Supply" )

NATURALGAS SUPPLY

With an agreement signed
with Distrigas of Massachusetts
in late 1988, Central Hudson has

secured an adequate supply of
natural gas to meet present
customer needs as well as to
serve growing demands in the
future. This contract provides
10,000 Mcf. (thousand cubic
feet) a day of firm gas service
for the 1988-89 heating season

and 15,000 Mcf. a day next
winter. Supplementing this will
be 4,000 Mcf. a day of gas con-
tracted for with Penn East
Storage Corp., expected to be

available during the 1989-90

heating season.

Additionally, it appeared at
year-end that a settlement
agreement would be reached
between several competing pipe-
line firms which seek to
strengthen the gas pipeline
system in the Northeast. Central
Hudson has a Memorandum of
Understanding with Alberta
Northeast Gas Limited for
10,000 Mcf. a day of firm gas
when a new pipeline makes this
Canadian gas available. A
further 10,000 Mcf. a day has
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Employees such as Junior Engineer
karen Shanley (left) and Assistant
Engineer Pat Abruzzo are continually
seeking to develop greater efficiency and
productivity in our power plants, where
even a fractional improvement translates
to major savings in generating costs.



been contracted for from
the proposed Tennessee-

Nortrans project.

CO~NSTRUCTION BUDGET

The Company's construction
budget for 1989 totals $ 61

million, which is essentially
unchanged from 1988. While
the Nine Mile 2 plant is now
operating, the budget includes
$5.2 million in completion costs
and modifications, plus another
$3 million for nuclear fuel.

The balance of the con-
struction budget includes
proposed expenditures at the
Roseton and Danskammer
Generating Plants to increase
their reliability and operating
efficiency. Work willalso begin
next year on a major 345 kv-
115 kv switching station in East
Pishkill which will reinforce
the bulk power supply into
the southeastern part of our
service area.

The budget also includes
proposals for improving and
upgrading our existing electric
and gas facilities to improve
reliability of service and to meet
the growing requirements of
our customers.

DIVIDENDREINVESTMENT

Since it was instituted in
1982, our Dividend Reinvest-
ment Plan has continued to be

very successful in helping to
reduce our borrowing require-
ments. At the end of 1988, there
were 9,382 shareholders
enrolled in the plan. During the

year, $3,954,674 was reinvested
in the Company, bringing to
$36,714,411 the total reinvested
dividends or voluntary cash
payments'ade since the
plan started.

RATE PROCEEDING

In April 1988 the Company
filed with the Public Service
Commission a plan to stabilize
electric rates through July 31,
1989, and possibly longer, as

well as a plan to reduce electric
rates by about $3 million,
beginning August 1, 1988. This
was made possible by using a

portion ofAPUDC (Allowance for
Punds Used During
Construction) from the Nine
Mile 2 project and a proposed
accounting change to offset
increased costs associated with
the plant's operation, as well as

increased costs of other
Company operations.

Hearings were completed by
the PSC in November, but the
Commission's decision in the
case was not available at the
time of printing.

ELECTRIC SALES

In the last five years, our
electric sales have grown at an
average annual rate of 5.5%,
well above the national average.
This success is due in part to the
fact that we are located in one
of the fastest growing areas of
New York State, as well as to
our marketing efforts, particu-
larly as they relate to the
electric heat pump.

NUMBER OF
ELECTRIC CUSTOMERS
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Constant attention to detail by people
like Residential New Business Marketing
Specialist Rick Greener (left) helps keep
underground gas and electric service
to scores ofnear residential subdiuisions
on schedule, critical for the booming
housing market in the Mid-Hudson Valley.



Central Hudson's electric
sales in 1988 were 5% higher
than they were in 1987. During
the year, we added 5,392 resi-
dential and 824 commercial
antII industrial customers.

An unprecedented heat wave
during the summer also added

to our sales, pushing our system
peak 8% above the forecasted
peak. While a number of utilities
experienced problems as equip-
ment was strained to the limit
during the 32 days of record
temperatures, Central Hudson
was able to meet customer
demands without interruption.

NATURALGAS SALES

Our aggressive approach to
increasing our penetration of
the natural gas market con-
tinues to be successful, with
a record 1,225 customers
added during 1988 and sales

increasing 12% over 1987.
A total of 90,000 feet of gas

mains were installed during the
year to reach new customers in
several growth areas of our
system. In Putnam County
alone, where we exercised our
franchise in 1987 to serve the
Town of Carmel, 14,000 feet of
mains were installed in 1988.

We expect to continue the
expansion of our natural gas

system in 1989 to attract further
new business. In addition, we
plan to exercise our franchise
in the Town of Coxsackie,

Greene County.

IMPROVEMENTS IN
OPERATIONAL
EFFECTIVENESS

Due to the skill and dedication
of our employees, we have been
able to initiate a number of steps
in recent years to increase
productivity. By instituting
capital-intensive, rather than
labor-intensive, measures and
increasing levels of training, we
have been successful in
increasing operating
effectiveness and holding down
the costs of our operations.

Some examples are the use of
combination electric and gas

crews, the use of plastic pipe for
gas services and mains, and
consolidation ofwork head-
quarters. We willcontinue to
seek other opportunities to
reduce costs where they can be

achieved without reducing our
quality of service.

In 1988, a Corporate Quality-
Productivity Program was

instituted to continue and
expand our efforts. Our goal
remains a simple one: to
enhance the quality, productivity
and competitiveness of our
operations, and thus maintain
and increase customer
satisfaction.

Our employees recognize
their own role in this. Through
our Better Way Suggestion
Program, they have contributed
hundreds of award-winning
suggestions on ways to improve
our operations in the past 6

years. In 1988, a record 105

suggestions were accepted for

NUMBER OF
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Behind the thrills and laughter our
assembly programs brought to thousands
ofMid-Hudson school children during
1988 was an important message of
electric safety, a theme we stress for
consumers ofall age groups.

10



awards from the 411 which
were offered.

One significant indicator of
productivity is the ratio of
customers to employees. In
1988, we served about 210
electric customers per employee.

By comparison, the national
average for electric utilities is

about 175 customers per
employee, and our own average
in 1981 was 183, an indication
of how far we have come.

AREA DEVELOPMENT

Central Hudson's future is

closely tied to the economic
strength and continued growth
of the region we serve. Within
our area, the most rapid growth
has come in Orange County,
especially the area adjacent to
Stewart International Airport.
Stewart has the second largest
land area of any airport in the
United States and a runway
capable of landing anything
which flies, including the Space
Shuttle. It is within 10 hours
driving time of 40/o of the
population of the United States
and Canada, and is at the
juncture of two major
Interstates: I-87 (the New York
State Thruway) and I-84.

We are pleased to.have
participated in the development
of Stewart by first proposing
construction of a 180-acre

model industrial park, by
maintaitiing a close working
relationship with local and state
economic development agencies,
arid by offering a number of

incentives to new business.
These include pricing discounts,
marketing support and a

commitment to install our
facilities in advance at no cost.

y'jt.

Already operating at Stewart
are several air cargo firms,
including Federal Express, Emery
Worldwide and UPS, as well as

major distribution centers for
Grand Union, Service
Merchandise and Child World.
In 1988, Metal Container Corp.,
a division of Anheuser-Busch,
opened a 300,000-square-foot
plant to manufacture beverage
cans, and ground was broken in
the Fall for a 230,000-square-foot
Regional Post Office which will
employ 650. The 105th Military
AirliftGroup of the AirNational
Guard is completing a $ 155

million construction program
to house twelve C-5A's, the
largest military aircraft
in the free world.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

In late 1987, we engaged an
independent research firm to
conduct a Customer Attitude
Survey, focusing on a number of
areas, from the cost of energy to
our overall performance. In
general, the 600 randomly
selected customers surveyed
indicated a lower concern for
the cost of electricity, a greater
awareness of our efforts to hold
down costs, and support for our
customer and community
services activities. Nevertheless,
during 1988 several steps were
taken to improve even further
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Capping our survey ofconsumer needs
during the year uas a day-long forum to
obtain feedback from social agencies
throughout our system, hosted by
employees such as Barbara Murphy
(rightj, Oirector ofCommunity Relations
and Consumer Outreach.



our service to customers.
Our Storm Restoration Plan

was revised to incorporate many
of the innovative and customer-
oriented steps taken to restore
seAice following the blizzard of
October 1987, the most devas-

tating storm ever to strike
our area.

While our tree-trimming
program has been effective in
reducing the number of
weather-related interruptions
experienced by our customers,
we are taking steps to further
improve this. We have already
increased the frequency of
trimming in urban areas from
every four years to every three,
and plan to go to a four-year
cycle for off-road lines,
improving service in rural areas.

Ground was broken in the Fall
for a new Customer Services
Office to better serve the
Catskill District. The new office
willadjoin our Operating
Headquarters, improving com-
munications bebveen these
work groups. In addition, an
office was opened in the Village
of Ravena, housing Operating
and Customer Relations
employees, to improve service
to the northern part of
our territory.

In 1988, we introduced our
Ambassador Program, through
which all officers of the
Company willestablish and
maintain regular contact with
our industrial customers. We

feel this program willhelp us

open channels of communi-
cations and ensure that we'e

providing the level of service
these customers demand
and deserve.

EXPANDED CUSTOMER
OUTREACH PROGRAM

In 1987, a Consumer
Outreach Section was formed to
integrate and expand existing
programs for our customers
with special needs. In April 1988
this section was enlarged into
the Community Relations and
Consumer Outreach Section. Its
role is to establish programs
that will improve responsiveness
to our customers'eeds, now
and in the future.

In addition to assessing the
results of the 1987 Customer
Attitude Survey, the Section
conducted a Customer Needs

Assessment during 1988 in
which the Company received

high marks. Among the key
findings were that we are
perceived as a Company that
cares about its customers, and
that 80% of the respondents felt
that they receive good value for
the dollars they spend on
electricity and natural gas.

This Section is responsible
for the administration of our
home energy audits, our
consumer education programs,
and the special programs we
offer to senior citizens and low-
income families.

Programs for Seniors

Recognizing the uniqueness
of the needs of customers who
are age 60 and over, we have

over the years established a
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Harnessing the waters ofMaine's
l(ennebec Riuer, this 15 000-kilowatt
hydro plant in which our Cencogen
subsidiary has a 7% interest is shown
under construction in late August.



number of programs to respond
to them. These are designed
with input from senior leaders

and individuals who meet with
the elderly on a regular basis.

Puch programs include the
installation of special teletype
devices so that we can
communicate with those who
have a hearing or speech
impediment; grants or zero-
interest loans for seniors on
limited incomes who wish to
install energy conservation
measures in their homes; and a

senior identification program
which ensures that they are
afforded all special rights
granted to seniors by law and
includes special protections
against service termination.

Home Energy Audits
I"or many years, we have

taken a proactive approach to
encouraging our customers to
use energy wisely. This has

involved a number of measures,
the most prominent of which
is our Home Energy Audit
Program. In its 10 years of
operation, our audit program
has reached nearly 30% of the
homes in our service territory,
advising some 45,000 customers
on steps they can take to improve
the energy efficiency of their
dwellings. In addition to pro-
viding the free audits, more than
$2,250,000 in grants or low-
interest loans have been made
to help finance measures to
reduce heat loss. This has saved

customers the equivalent of 13.7
milliongallons of oil.

This program is an important
step in end-use conservation,
helping to reduce peak demands
on our electric and gas systems
and thereby extending the time
when additional energy sources
are needed. Its value to the
consumer is widely recognized;
its value to the Company is

becoming increasingly
important.

In 1988, a new cooperative
program was instituted with the
Community Action Programs
and agencies in the eight
counties we serve. Through this
program, Central Hudson will
donate $ 100 to the CAP agencies
for each Weatherization
Assistance Program audit they
perform for low-income
customers. This venture will
help fund additional conser-
vation measures which the
agencies willbe able to install
for their clients.

Reaching Tomorrow's
Customers

Today's youngster is
tomorrow's consumer, a fact
which we'e long recognized by
providing plant tours and school
programs for students of all
ages, instilling in them the need
to use energy both wisely and
safely. In 1988, we undertook a

major expansion of this effort by
contracting with a professional
organization to produce
entertaining assembly programs
for grade school pupils. These
educational and safety-oriented
programs were performed in 50
schools before an audience
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totaling 23,000 children, with
excellent feedback from teachers

and principals.
Our power plant tour

program, which has focused on
the Roseton Generating Plant,
was expanded to include a tour
of the Danskammer Generating
Plant site. It particularly
emphasizes the steps taken at
the latter facility to reduce the
environmental impact of using
coal as a boiler fuel. Some 80

tours were conducted for nearly
3,000 visitors.

We also continued our
support of two local educational
programs: the Mid-Hudson
Teacher Center, which provides
in-service energy education
training to teachers, and the
Ulster County School/Industry
Council. Through this latter
group, several local firms
provide seminars in which gifted
math and science students see

first-hand the applications of
technology in industry.

At the state level, we are a

participant in the New York
Science-Technology-Society
Education Project (NYSTEP).

Through this project, the
members of the New York Power

Pool, the State Education
Department and the State

University of New York are

developing teaching materials
and conducting teacher
workshops to improve science
education in New York State.

The importance of this project
was recognized by the National
Association for Industry-
Education Cooperation, which

presented the NYSTEP partners
with its 1988 award as the
nation's most creative and

effective program to further
improve education.

RESEARCHAND
DEVELOPMENT

Central Hudson's research

and development efforts are

wide-ranging, supporting
industry- and government-
sponsored projects on the state

and national level, such as those

conducted by the Electric Power
Research Institute, the New

York State Energy Research and
Development Agency, and the
Empire State Electric Energy
Research Council. In addition,
we also carry out our own RRD

projects. While many of the
latter are aimed at improving
efficiencies and reducing
environmental impacts at our
generating plants, research is

also under way which could
improve customer service
and reliability.

We are continuing our
research on Compressed Natural
Gas as a transportation fuel,
with 18 Company vehicles

powered now by CNG operating
on a daily basis. CNG has the
potential of dramatically
increasing our sales of natural
gas, as well as reducing vehicle
emissions which are a major
source of air pollution.

Over the past several years,
and particularly in 1988,

utilities in New York State have

experienced significant increases



in peak electric demands. To

forestall the need to add new
generation, Central Hudson and
several other utilities and RRD
organizations in 1988

commenced a demand side

management program aimed
initiallyat the residential sector.
Using a system called RELMS,
for Residential Energy and Load
Management Systems, tests will
be conducted with a number of
customers to evaluate the
overall benefits of enabling them
to selectively reduce their
energy use during periods of
peak demand.

SUBSIDIARYOPERATIONS

While many utilities have
taken a broad approach to non-
regulated subsidiaries, entering
such fields as banking, com-
munications and real estate, we
feel that our best opportunities
remain in that business we
know best: energy.

State and national energy
policies, aimed at strengthening
the roles of independent power
producers and cogeneration
facilities, provide an excellent
expansion opportunity. With our
two established subsidiaries,
Central Hudson is in a good
position to enter this market,
putting an element of share-
holders'oney to work in
a non-regulated fashion in
businesses in which we
have expertise.

One subsidiary, Central
Hudson Cogeneration
(Cencogen) is primarily an

investor in small power-

producing facilities. Formed in
1984 under Section 66 of the
Public Service Law, it is

permitted to hold up to a 50%
interest in a project. The second,
Central Hudson Enterprises
Corp., formed in 1982, is a full
service energy company which
offers its clients engineering
evaluation, design, construction,
financing and operational
services.

In late 1988, the West
Delaware Hydroelectric Plant, a

7,500-kw. facility in Sullivan
County, went into commercial
service. Cencogen has a 50%
interest in this $ 9.6 million
project, which uses as a source
of water the flow between two
reservoirs of the New York City
aqueduct system.

Cencogen also has a 7%
interest in a 15,000-kw. hydro
plant on the Kennebec River in
Maine which entered com-
mercial operation in early 1989.

Cencogen's long-term
objectives are to diversify its
investments into coal- and
natural gas-fueled projects in
various areas of the country.

Clients of Central Hudson
Enterprises (CHEC) include
industrial firms, municipal
agencies, schools, hospitals and
a utility, located primarily in the
Northeast and Mid-Atlantic
regions. In 1988, for example, it
completed a 4,850-kw. gas-fired
cogenerating facility for a

Massachusetts lime manu-
facturer, and a 280-kw. gas
engine cogenerator for a
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~ LONO4ERM OEBT

~ PRET ERREO STOCK

~ COMMONSTOCK

100
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hospital, also in Massachusetts.

Cencogen earned its first
profit in 1988, while CHEC is

expected to become profitable
in 1989. Although neither oper-
ation approaches the magnitude
of the parent company, each has

the potential of increasing value

to our shareholders.

CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

In December, Chairman of
the Board Theodore J. Carlson
announced that he would not
stand for re-election as a

member of the Board of
Directors at the 1989 Annual
Meeting. The Board has

indicated its intention, upon his
re-election as a director, to elect
John E. Mack IIIChairman of
the Board and Chief Executive
Officer of the Corporation at the
Annual Reorganization Meeting.
Also at the December meeting,
the Board elected Paul J. Ganci,
Senior Vice President-Operations,
to the Board effective January 1,

1989. (See further discussion
under "Management Changes.")

In July, Lee C. White sub-

mitted his resignation as a

member of the Board of
Directors because of the
increasing demands of his
Washington law practice. In his
four years on the Board, Mr.
White provided wise counsel
and advice, drawing on his
experience as an attorney and as

a former Chairman of the
Federal Power Commission. His
contributions were extremely

appreciated, and willbe missed.

Heinz I'ridrich, IBM Vice

President-Manufacturing for
International Business Machines
Corporation, was named by the
Board to fillthis vacancy. Mr.
Fridrich's experience with this
major industry, his membership
in a variety of professional
organizations, and his experience

in the industrial and educational
fields make him a valuable
addition to the Board.

MANAGEMENTCHANGES

As noted above, President and

Chief Executive Officer John E.

Mack III is expected to be

elected Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer by
the Board of Directors in April.
The Board has also expressed its
intent to elect Mr. Paul J. Ganci
President and Chief Operating
Officer, and to elect Mr. L.
Wallace Cross Executive Vice

President and Chief Financial
Officer. Mr. Ganci, an Officer of
the Company since 1980, is

presently Senior Vice President-
Operations. Mr. Cross, an Officer
of the Company since 1967, is

Senior Vice President - Finance
and Accounting.



When he steps down as

Chairman following the
Corporation's Annual Meeting
on April4, 1989, Theodore J.

Carlson willconclude a 41-year
association which began as a
law clerk for Gould Ck Wilkie,
our general counsel.

First elected to the Board of
Directors ofCentral Hudson in
1967, he has served as Chair-
man since 1975. Throughout
his career, he has been an
active participant not only in
the affairs ofthe Company but .

also through hisinvolvement
at the national and state levels
on all major issues affecting
the Company and the industry.

On the national level, Mr.
Carlson has been closely
associated with the Edison
Electric Institute where,
among other responsibilities,
he served as a member ofthe
Board ofDirectors and as the
first Chairman ofits Policy
Committee for Corporate
Planning, a committee he was
instrumental in creating. He
also serves on the Board of
Directors ofthe Electric Power
Research Institute, the
industry's national research
organization.

At the state level, he was a
founder and past Chairman of
the Energy Association of
New York State, which
represents utilityinterests
in the state capital. He has
served as a member ofits
Executive Committee since
the association was founded
in 1975

From 1980 untilApril1988,
Mr. Carlson was a member of
the New York State Energy
Research and Development
Authority, appointed
successively by Governors
Hugh Carey and Mario Cuomo,
andserved as Chairman ofits
Finance and Audit Committee.
In 1984, he was appointed by
Governor Cuomo to the Mid-
Hudson Regional Economic
Development Council, serving
as its Chairman until the
Spring of1988.

Mr. Carlson's dedication to
both the Company and the
region itserves, his knowledge
ofthe utilityindustry, and his
participation in the activities of
Central Hudson willbe

greatly missed.
19



GENERATING CAPABILITIES
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ABOUT
CENTRAL HUDSON

Central Hudson is an investor-owned
electric and gas utilityfounded in
1900 and serving a population of

approximately 598,000 in a 2,600-
square-mile area of New York'

Mid-Hudson Valley. Our service area
begins 25 miles north of New York

City and ends 10 miles south of
Albany, comprising parts of the

counties of Albany, Columbia,
Dutchess, Greene, Orange, Putnam,

Sullivan and Ulster. Major
population centers include the

cities of Poughkeepsie, Kingston,
Newburgh, Beacon and the

Village of Catskill.
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The Company had another excellent year in 1988 for both
electric and gas sales. Sales of electricity within Central
Hudson's service territory increased for the sixth consecutive
year and firm sales of natural gas grew for the third
consecutive year. Sales improvements reflected a cold winter,
an unusually warm summer and a continuing strong economy
in Southeastern New York State.

Earnings per share, however, decreased 3 cents from
comparable 1987 earnings primarily due to a further decline
in the rate of return reflected in the Stipulation and
Agreement effective as of August 1, 1988, now pending a

decision by the PSC, and a lower rate of return for the gas

department. The price of the Company's common stock
increased to $21.50 per share from its 1987 closing price of
$ 17.25.

The Company successfully completed a bond financing
during the year and continued to increase its equity base in
the aftermath of the NMP-2 write-off in 1987. At December 31,
1988, the Company had no short-term debt outstanding and
had $20.7 millionof temporary investments in taxable and
tax-exempt securities.

Earnings Per Share (Page 43):

The Company achieved earnings per share of common
stock of $2.63 in 1988. Comparable earnings for 1987 were

$2.66 per share. In order to put the 1987 earnings on a

comparable basis with 1988 earnings, the 1987 earnings were
recalculated to exclude the effects of the write-offof the
NMP-2 disallowance for financial reporting purposes and to
eliminate the Allowance for Funds used During Construction
that was accrued on the disallowed NMP-2 investment during
1987.

Dividends Per Share (Page 30):

Dividends paid to shareholders in 1988.decreased 43
percent to $ 1.70 per share from $2.96 per share in 1987. No
portion of the 1988 dividend constitutes a return of capital.

On December 16, 1988, the quarterly dividend rate, payable
February 1, 1989, was increased to $ .44 per share from $ .425.

Common Stock:

The Dividend Reinvestment Plan raised $4.0 million. These
issuances increased the number of common shares

outstanding to 14,563,381. At December 31, 1988, a share of
common stock was selling at $21.50 while the book value per
share was $21.24. At December 31, 1988, the Company's ~

shares were'held approximately 95% by individuals and 5% by

institutional investors. Approximately 48% of Company shares

are held in registered form with the Registrar and Transfer
Agent and 52% are held in "street name". Total return to
shareholders in 1988 amounted to $5.95 (34%) per share,
consisting of $4.25 of market appreciation and $ 1.70 of cash

dividends.

Debt Offerings:

The Company issued $ 16.7 million of its first mortgage
bonds in December to secure a like amount of tax-exempt
Pollution Control Revenue Bonds issued by the New York
State Energy Research and Development Authority. The bonds

carry a fixed interest rate of 8.375% and mature in 2028. The
proceeds were used to redeem short-term debt.

Electric Sales (Page 44):

Electric sales within the service territory increased 5% in
1988. Sales to residential and commercial customers
increased 8% and 8%, respectively, due to increased usage and
customer growth. Industrial sales increased 2% primarily due
to an increase in customer usage.

Gas Sales (Page 44):

Firm sales of natural gas increased 12% in 1988. Sales to
residential and commercial customers increased 8% and 16%

respectively. Firm sales to industrial customers increased 16%

primarily due to the opening of a new metal container
manufacturing facility in the service territory.

Rate Proceedings (Page 32):

As more fullydiscussed in Note 3, the Company's financial
results for 1988 are based on the provisions contained in a

Stipulation and Agreement (Stipulation) which was entered
into on October 13, 1988. The Stipulation, which is subject to
PSC approval, would resolve all issues in the Company's
pending electric rate proceeding, other than return on
common equity which the parties have agreed to litigate, and
would provide for a $2,689,000 reduction in base electric rates

for the period August 1, 1988 through July 31, 1989. Although
the Company has taken the position that the authorized
return on common equity should, be 13.4%, the financial
results for 1988 are based on the provisional 12.7% return on
common equity contained in the Stipulation.

Nine Mile 2 Plant (Page 29):

As of December 31, 1988, the Company had $515 million
invested in Unit No. 2 of the Nine Mile Point 2 Nuclear Station
(NMP-2). Of this amount, $301 million has been allowed in
rate base by the Public Service Commission and $3 million
represents construction work in progress. The balance, $211

million, represents disallowed investment. An after-tax
provision for the disallowed investment, in the amount of
$ 169.3 million, was written offagainst income in 1987.

Taxes (Page 46):

In 1988, the Company incurred $70.0 million for operating
taxes levied by federal, state and local governments.
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Five-Year Summary of Consolidated Operations and Selected Financial Data":
(Thousands of Dollars)

Operating Revenues:
Electric ....;.................
Gas.

Total.

Operating Expenses:
Operations.
Maintenance
Depreciation and amortization..
Operating taxes.
Federal income tax

„Total.

1988

$ 379,249
59,136

438,385

232,243
23,813
31,938
47,953
21,843

35?,790

1987

374,951
54,126

429,07?

223,916
20,632
28,163
44,379
31,476

348,566

1986

$ 377,103
61,448

438,551

240,196
19,733
24,894
42,551
39,454

366,828

1985

$ 436,652
68,150

504,802

316,553
14,884
24,249
41,675
38,082

435,443

1984

$ 454,860
68,329

523,189

352,642
13,814
22,531
39,681
34,208

462,876

Operating Income. 80 595 80 511 71 723 69 359 60 313

Other Income and Deductions:
Equitycomponent ofAFDC..
Federal income tax - credit.
Current year effect ofadoption of SFAS 90.....
Other - net.

Total.

Income Before Interest Charges and Cumulative Effect
of a Change in Accounting Principle.................................

Interest Charges.

Income (Loss) Before Cumulative Effect
of a Change in Accounting Principle.................................

Cumulative effect on prior years of adoption of SFAS 90
Net Income (Loss) .

Dividends on Preferred Stock.
Income (Loss) Available for Common Stock......................
Dividends Declared on Common Stock...............................
Amount Retained in the Business..
Retained Earnings - beginning ofyear................................
Retained Earnings - end ofyear

Common Stock:
Average Shares Outstanding (000's) ................
Income (Loss) Available Per Average Share ...
Dividends Declared Per Share
Book Value Per Share (at year end) .................

403
703

2,739
3,845

84,440

40,636

43,804

43,804
5,753

38,051
24,851
13,200
11,530

$ 24,730 $

14,473

$2.63
$ 1.715

$21.24

3,371
(71)

(51,919)
2,198

(46,421)

34,090

42,559

(8,469)
(101,475)
(109,944)

5,593
(115,537)

37,666
(153,203)
164,733

11,530

14,230
$ (8.12)
$2.645
$20.35

21,594
6,690

371
28,655

100,378

35,494

64,884

64,884
5,614

59,270
40,393
18,877

145,856
$ 164,733

13,207
$4.49
$2.96

$31.18

18,644
6,5?0

(604)
24,610

93,969

34,297

.59,672

59,672
6,184

53,488
33,945
19,543

126,313

$ 145,856 $

11,458
$4.67
$2.93

$29.49

15,709
"4,965

621

21,295

81,608

30,471

51,137

51,137
6,459

44,678
28,860
15,818

110,495
126,313

10,087
$4.43

$ 2.78

$27.91

Total Assets ..

Long-Term Debt..
Cumulative Preferred Stock..
Common Equity..

PRO FORNA EFFECT OF SFAS 90 BEING APPLIED
RETROACTIVELYFOR NblP-2 DISALLOWANCE
(NOTE 2):

Income (Loss) Available for Common Stock...................
Income (Loss) Available Per Average Share of
Common Stock..

$ 1,046,290
448,605

81,030
309,269

$ 1,024,3?1
429,958

81,030
292,240

(14,062)

(.99)

$ 1,157,698
439,725

81,030
439,860

$ 13,270

$ 1.01

$ 1,038,524
444,900

81,030
356,084

$ '1,512)

$ (.13)

$ 878,240
352,825

81,030
307,156

* This summary should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the "Financial
Section" of this Annual Report.
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FINANCIALSECTION 1988 ANNUALREPORT

Report of Independent Accountants

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Central Hudson Gas 6 Electric Corporation

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance
sheet and the related consolidated statements of income,
of retained earnings and of cash flows present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of Central
Hudson Gas 6 Electric Corporation and its subsidiaries
at December 31, 1988 and 1987, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 1988, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management; our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits of these financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards which require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion
expressed above.

As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, the
Company adopted in 1987 Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 90, "Regulated Enterprises-
Accounting for Abandonments and Disallowances of
Plant Costs." The adoption of this Statement resulted in
the disallowed portion of the Company's investment in
Unit No. 2 of the Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station
(NMP-2) being recognized as a loss in the 1987 financial
statements.

As a result of continuing uncertainties with respect to
NMP-2 described in Note 2, management is unable to
predict whether further regulatory actions by the Public
Service Commission of the State of New York with
respect to the Company's investment in NMP-2 will
have, in the aggregate, a material effect on the
Company's financial position or results of operations.
Accordingly, no provision for any additional loss that
may result upon resolution of these uncertainties has
been made in the accompanying financial statements.

PRICE WATERHOUSE

New York, New York
January 27, 1989

Consolidated Statement of Retained Earnings
(Thousands of Dollars)

Year ended December 31,

1988 1987 1986

Balance at beginning ofyear

Net Income (Loss) (Note 2)

Dividends declared:

On cumulative preferred stock.

On common stock

($ 1.715 per share 1988; $2.645 per share 1987;

$2.96 per share 1986) .

$ 11,530

43 804

55 334

5,753

24 851

30 604

$ 164,733 $ 145,856

~109 944 64 884

54 789 210 740

5,593 5,614

37 666 '0 393

43 259 46 007

Balance at end of year $ 24 730 ~ $ 11 530 $ 164 733

* Pursuant to the terms of the 4.85% promissory notes, due 1995, $ 16,316 is available for payment of dividends on common stock.

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
(Thousands of Dollars)

Assets

UtilityPlant
Electric.
Gas.

Common.

Less accumulated depreciation.

Construction work in progress.
Nuclear fuel assemblies and components, net ...

Other Property and Investments.

1988

$ 962,102
81,207
50 349

1,093,658
286 444
807,214

25,156
12 533

844 903

9 865

1987

$ 636,658
73,335
47 011

757,004
262 942
494,062
320,995

15 058
830 115

6 092

Current Assets
Cash.........................
Temporary cash investments .

Special deposits:
Pollution control funds held by trustee
Other

Accounts receivable from customers - net (Note 9) .....
Receivable - Nine Mile 2 Settlement (Note 2)
Accrued unbilled utilityrevenues (Notes 1 and 9) .......
Other receivables.
Materials and supplies, at average cost:

Fuel.
Construction and operating.

Prepaid taxes and other prepayments..

Deferred Charges
Deferred finance charges - Nine Mile 2 Project (Note 1) .....

Deferred Roseton litigation settlement (Note 1) .........;........
Unamortized debt expense
Unamortized rehabilitation costs (Note'3)
Deferred vacation.
Other

3,907
20,667

1,185
11,345

6,678
8,586

14,930
11,625
8 785

87 708

"
76,252
4,606
9,104

2,857
10 995

103 814

1,786
420

3,106
1,494
9,249

26,100

9,775

11,019
11,344
7 690

81 983

68,326
5,528
9,697
7,147
2,780

12 703
106 181

$ 1 046 290 $ 1 024 371

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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December 31, 1988 and 1987

Liabilities

1988 1987

Capitalization
Common Stock Equity

Common stock (Note 6) .

Paid-in capital (Note 6).
Retained earnings.
Capital stock expense.

Cumulative Preferred Stock (Note 6)
Without sinking fund
With sinking fund.

Long-term Debt (Note 7).

$ 240,034
50,067
24,730

~5562
309 269

61,030
20,000
81 030

448 605
838 904

$ 236,079
50,067
11,530

~5436
292 240

61,030
20 000
81 030

429 958
803 228

Current Liabilities
Long-term debt maturing within one year.
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Accrued taxes.
Accrued interest..
Accrued vacation (Note 10).
Customer deposits.
Dividends declared..
Accrued Nine Mile 2 Project completion costs.....
Other

Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities
Deferred finance charges - Nine Mile 2 Project (Notes 1 and 3) .....

Operating reserves.
Other

Accumulated Deferred Income Tax (Note 4)

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 2 and 10) ...

1,391

23 72?
3,7.22

7,812
3,050
3,497
7,849
4,622
6 108

61

778'6,565

1,783
7 896

76 244

69 364

$ 1 046 290

18,000
4,000

22,437
11,818

7,526
2,973
2,890
7,570

10,132
12 785

100 131

66,726
1,942
7 577

76 245

44 767

$ 1 024 371

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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Consolidated Statement of Income
(Thousands of Dollars) Year ended December 31,

1988 1987 1986

Operating Revenues
Electric.
Gas..

Total - own territory.
Revenues from electric sales to other utilities.

$366,052
59 136

425,188
13 197

$ 357,726
54 126

411,852
17 225

$347,593
61 448

409,041
29 510

Operating Expenses
Operation:

Fuel used in electric generation .

Purchased electricity.
Purchased natural gas
Other expenses of operation

Maintenance.
Depreciation and amortization (Note 1) ..

Taxes, other than income tax
Federal income tax (Note 4).
Deferred income tax (Note 4)

Operating Income.

114,020
12,099
31,981
74,143
23,813
31,938
47,953
(2,817)

24 660

104,041
30,031
27,131
62,713
20,632
28,163
44,379
13,032
18 444

110,258
34,362
33,413
62,163
19,733
24,894
42,551
38,162

1 292
357 790 348 566 366 828

80 595 80 511 71 723

436 385 429 07 7 '438 551

Other Income and Deductions
Allowance for equity funds used during construction (Note 1) .....
Federal income tax (Note 4).
Deferred income tax - credit (Note 4) .

Current year effect of adoption of SFAS 90 (Note 2):
Disallowed plant costs
Related income tax.

Other - net

403
5,747

(5,044)

2 739

3,371
3,330

(3,401)

(64,874)
12,955
2 198

21,594
5,908

782

371
3 845 ~46 421 28 655

Income before Interest Charges and Cumulative Effect of a

Change in Accounting Principle 84 440 34 090 100 378

Interest Charges
Interest on mortgage bonds.
Interest on other long-term debt
Other interest
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction (Note 1) ...

Amortization of premium and expense on debt.

29,001
8,888
2,296
(591)

1 042

33,313
7,318
2,477

(1,605)
1 056

37,226
6,105
1,637

(10,131)
657

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle .....

Cumulative effect on prior years of adoption of SFAS 90
(Less applicable income tax of $45,431) (Note 2)

40 636

43,804 (8,469)

101 475

64,884

'42 559 35 494

Net Income (Loss) .

Dividends on Preferred Stock

Income (Loss) Available for Common Stock.

Average Shares of Common Stock Outstanding (000's) ..

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share - On Average Shares Outstanding:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.....
Cumulative effect on prior years of adoption of SFAS 90.
Earnings (loss) per share.

43,804

5 753

(109,944)

5 593

64,884

5 614

$ 2.63 $ (.99)
~7.13

$ 4.49

$ 2.63 ~$ 8.72 $ 4.49

$ 38 051 ~$ 115 537 $ 59 270

14 473 14 230 13 207

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part hereof.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Thousands of Dollars) Year ended December 31,

1988 1987 1986

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net Income (Loss).
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Cumulative effect on prior years of adoption of SFAS 90....
Current year effect of adoption of SFAS 90.
Depreciation and amortization .

Deferred income taxes, net
Allowance for funds used during construction..
Deferred storm costs.
Deferred Danskammer rehabilitation costs.
Deferred electric revenues ..

Premium and expenses on redemption of debt.
Deferred Sterling Project costs .

Other - net..
Changes in current assets and liabilities, net:

Receivable - NMP-2 Settlement.
Accrued NMP-2 Project completion costs..
Accounts receivable and unbilled utilityrevenues.
Materials and supplies.
Special deposits.
Prepaid taxes and other prepayments
Accounts payable.
Accrued taxes and interest...-
Other current liabilities.

Net cash provided by operating activities.

$ 43,804 $ (109,944)

35,422
29,704

(994)

185

(1,659)

(55)
1,664

26,100
(5,510)
(7,585)
(4,192)

309
(1,095)
1,290

(7,810)
~6600

101,475
41,787
28,933
21,845
(4,976)
(3,728)

(10,114)
(2,236)

820
3,206

(1,001)

10,132
25,030

661

639
429

(4,797)
6,323
2 357

102 978 106 841

$ 64,884

25,675
510

(31,725)

5,394
(4,736)

(200)
2,992

(26,100)

10,462
2,951

(1,922)
(1,595)
4,975

(883)
5 571

56 253

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to plant.
Allowance for funds used during construction

Net cash expenditures
NMP-2 Settlement receivable
Investments in and advances to subsidiaries...
Plant retirements, costs of removal and other.

(53,4?2)
994

(52,478)

(5,881)
4 083

(100,692)
4 976

(95,716)

203
~3151

(171,182)
31 725

(139,457)
26,100

(837)
~1002

Net cash used in investing activities..

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of:

Long-term debt
Common stock.
Pollution Control debt:

Issued...............................
Deposited with Trustee .

Withdrawn from Trustee
Short-term debt, net

Cash provided by external sources.
Retirement and redemption of long-term debt
Dividends paid on preferred stock.
Dividends paid on common stock.

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net Change in Cash and Temporary Cash Investments.............
Cash and Tempora~ Cash Investments at Beginning of Year .......................
Cash and Temporal Cash Investments at End of Year.................................

The Notes to Financial Statements are an

54 276

5,850
3,955

16,700
(16,700)
19,806

~4000
25,611

(21,620)
(5,778)

~24 547

~26 334

22,368
2 206

$ 24 574

integral part hereof.

98 664 115 196

6,394

43,600
(43)600)
58,088

4 000

68,482
, (35,075)

(5,480)
~42 001

50,000
65,221

35,668

150,889
(55,175)

(5,780)
~38 891

(5,897)
8 103

(7,900)
16 003

$ 2 206 $ 8 103

~74 074 51 043
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARYOF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General: The Company is subject to regulation by the Public
Service Commission of the State of New York (PSC) and the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) with respect to
its rates for service and the maintenance of its accounting
records. The Company's accounting policies conform to
generally accepted accounting principles as applied to regulated
public utilities, and are in accordance with the accounting
requirements and rate-making practices of the regulatory
authorities having jurisdiction.

In December 1988, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 95, "Statement of
Cash Flows" issued by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB). This Statement requires a Statement of Cash

Flows in place of a Statement of Changes in Financial Position.
Prior years'tatements of Changes in Financial Position have

been restated to reflect the effect of the adoption of this new
accounting pronouncement. For purposes of the Statement of
Cash Flows, the Company considers temporary cash investments
with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Principles of Consolidation: In December 1988, the
Company also adopted SFAS No. 94, "Consolidation ofAll
Majority-Owned Subsidiaries" (SFAS 94). As a result, the
Company's financial statements for 1988 have been consolidated
and include the financial results of both the Company and its
subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have

been eliminated. In prior years, the Company used the equity
method ofaccounting for its investment in its subsidiaries.

The Company's subsidiaries are wholly owned landholding,
gas exploration, cogeneration and energy management
companies. The assets, liabilities and results of operations of
these subsidiaries are not significant in relation to the Company.
Accordingly, prior years'inancial statements have not been
restated to reflect the adoption of SFAS 94. Furthermore, due to
immateriality, the net income of the Company's subsidiaries is
reflected in the Statement of Income as other nonoperating
income- net.

'tilityPlant: The costs of additions to utilityplant and
replacements of retirement units of property are capitalized at
original cost. The costs of Unit No. 2 of the Nine Mile Point
Nuclear Station (NMP-2) are capitalized at original cost, less the
amount of the disallowed investment (See Note 2). Costs include
labor, materials and supplies, indirect charges for such items as

transportation, certain taxes, pension and other employee
benefits, and an allowance for the cost of funds used during
construction. Replacement of minor items of property is

included in maintenance expenses.

The original cost of property, together with removal cost, less

salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation at such time as

the property is retired and removed from service.

The Company has a 9%%d interest in the 1,084 mw. NMP-2

Plant and a 35% interest in the 1,200 mw. Roseton Steam
Electric Generating Plant (Roseton Plant). See Note 10 for
further discussion.
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The Company's share of the investment in NMP-2 and the
Roseton Plant, as included in its )Ialance Sheet at December 31,
1988 and 1987, was:

1988 1987
(Thousands of Dollars)

NMP-2
Plant in-service $301,101
Construction work in progress 2,771
Accumulated depreciation (5,571)

$
299,413

Roseton Plant
Plant in-service $ 117,336 $ 117,829
Construction work in progress 128 226
Accumulated depreciation (50,431) (47;699)

Allowance for Funds used During Construction: The
Company includes in plant costs an allowance for funds used

during construction (AFDC) approximately equivalent to the
cost of funds used to finance construction expenditures. The
concurrent credit for the amount so capitalized is reported in
the Statement of Income as follows: the portion applicable to
borrowed funds is reported as a reduction of interest charges
while the portion applicable to other funds (the equity
component) is reported as other income. AFDC is a noncash
source of income.

During the construction of NMP-2, the PSC authorized the
inclusion in rate base of increasing amounts of the'Company's

investment in NMP-2. The Company did not accrue AFDC on
any of the NMP-2 construction work in progress (CWIP) which
was included in rate base and for which a cash return was being
allowed; however, the PSC ordered, effective January 1, 1983,
that amounts be accumulated in deferred debit and credit
accounts equal to the amount ofAFDC which was not being
accrued on the CWIP included in rate base. The balance in the
deferred credit account is available to reduce future revenue
requirements over a period substantially shorter than the life of
NMP-2, while the balance in the deferred debit account is being
recovered through amortization over the life of the Plant. The
net effect of this procedure is that at the end of the amortization
period for the deferred credit, the accounting and rate-making
treatment willbe the same as ifNMP-2 CWIP had not been
included in rate base during the construction period.

Depreciation and Amortization: For financial statement
purposes, the Company's depreciation provisions are computed
on the straight-line method using rates based on studies of the
estimated useful lives and estimated net salvage of properties.
The provision for depreciation of transportation equipment is

charged indirectly to various asset and expense accounts.
For federal income tax purposes, the Company uses an

accelerated method of depreciation and generally uses the
shortest life permitted for each class of assets.

Effective October 22, 1982, pursuant to a PSC determination
that all of the expenditures on the cancelled Sterling Project
were prudent, the Company began recovering its investment in
the Sterling Project through, rates. The amortization and



recovery of this investment and related cancellation charges
was completed in July1988, and is reported on the Statement of
Income as "Depreciation and Amortization."

Amortization of Nuclear Fuel: The cost of nuclear fuel
assemblies and components is amortized to operating expenses

based on the quantity of heat produced for the generation of
electric energy. Niagara Mohawk, on behalf of the NMP-2
cotenants, has entered into an agreement with the U.S.
Depart'ment of Energy for the ultimate disposal and storage of
spent nuclear fuel. The cotenants are assessed a fee for such
disposal based upon the kilowatt-hours actually generated by
NMP-2. These costs are charged to operating expense and
recovered from customers through base rates or through the
electric fuel cost adjustment clause described below. The
Company cannot now determine whether such arrangements
with the U.S. Department of Energy willultimately provide for
the satisfactory permanent disposal of such waste products.

Rates and Revenues: Electric and gas retail rates applicable
to intrastate service (other than contractually established rates
for service to municipalities and governmental bodies) are
regulated by the PSC. Transmission rates and rates for
electricity sold for resale in interstate commerce are regulated
by the FERC.

Revenues are recognized on the basis of cycle billings
rendered monthly or bimonthly. Estimated revenues are
accrued for those customers billed bimonthly whose meters are
not read in the current month.

The Company's tarifffor retail electric service includes a fuel
cost adjustment clause pursuant to which electric rates are
adjusted to reflect changes in the average cost of fuels used for
electric generation and in certain purchased power costs from
the average of such costs included in base rates. The Company's
tarifffor gas service contains a comparable clause to adjust gas
rates for changes in the price of purchased natural gas and in
certain costs of manufactured gas.

Deferred Electric Fuel Costs: The provisions of the electric
fuel cost adjustment clause are such that changes in fuel costs
incurred in the current month are not billed or credited to
customers until subsequent months. Therefore, in order to
rnatch costs and revenues, the Company defers that portion of
such costs incurred in the current month which willresult in a
cost adjustment in subsequent months.

Pursuant to a 1985 Order of the PSC, the Company's electric
fuel cost adjustment clause provides for a partial sharing of
variations in fuel costs from the levels of fuel costs projected in
rate proceedings. The Company bears 20% of the first $ 10
millionofvariation and 10% of the second $ 10 millionof
variation. The partial sharing applies to variations in actual fuel
costs either above or below the projected levels; accordingly, the
Company's maximum annual exposure, or benefit, is $3 million,
before taxes.

As a result of the adoption of the partial sharing electric fuel
adjustment clause, the PSC adopted a symmetrical sharing
arrangement for net revenues from sales to other utilities.
Shortfalls below the imputed amount, as well as amounts above
the imputed amount, willbe shared 80% by the customers and
20% by the Company.

Deferred Gas Costs: In accordance, with requirements of the
PSC applicable to all New York State regulated gas utilities, the
Company defers each month any difference between the
amount of gas costs incurred which is recoverable through the
gas fuel cost adjustment clause (GAC) and GAC revenues. The
net deferral remaining at August 31 of each year is amortized
over a subsequent bvelve-month period for both billingand
accounting purposes.

Deferred Electric Revenues: On occasion, revenues which
are billed over a twelve-month rate year are designed to cover
specific expenses which are projected to be incurred during the
latter part of the rate year. Although there willbe a matching of
revenues and costs in the rate year there can be a mismatching
of revenues and costs within calendar years. Ifthe amount of
the projected mismatch is material, the Company may petition
the PSC to defer any revenues collected prior to the time the
associated expenses are incurred and to restore such deferred
revenues at the time the expenses are incurred. Such deferred
accounting provides a better matching of revenues and costs

during calendar years.

Roseton Plant Litigation Settlement: During 1983, the
Company and the other two co-owners of the Roseton Plant
reached a settlement to recover damages for alleged negligence
in the design and construction of the Roseton Plant by certain
contractors which resulted in a boiler implosion. The $4.6 ~

millionamount recorded at December 31, 1988 in deferred
charges represents the Company's 35% interest in the
remaining balance of the $26.3 millionsettlement to be

received over a ten-year period that commenced in 1984.

NOTE 2 - NINE NILE2 PLANT

General: NMP-2 is located in Oswego County, New York, and
is operated by Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation (Niagara
Mohawk). NMP-2 is owned as tenants in common by the
Company (9% interest), Niagara Mohawk (41% interest), New
York State Electric S Gas Corporation (18% interest), Long
Island Lighting Company (18% interest) and Rochester Gas and
Electric Corporation (14% interest). The output of NMP-2 is
shared in the same proportions as the cotenants'espective
ownership interests. The operating expenses of NMP-2 are also
allocated to the cotenants in the same proportions as their
respective ownership interests. The Company includes these
expenses as other expenses of operation in the Statement of
Income.

Write-offof Disallowed Investment: In September 1986, the
PSC approved a settlement (Settlement) of a proceeding to
investigate the prudence of expenditures on the construction of
NMP-2. The Settlement, among other things, limits the
expenditures on NMP-2 which the cotenants can recover
through rates to $4.16 billion. The Company's earnings have
been significantly reduced as a'result of th'e cost disallowance
under the Settlement because, for rate-making purposes, the
Company is not allowed to earn a return on the after-tax
amount of such disallowed investment and, therefore, derives
no revenues from this disallowed investment.
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In December 1986, the FASB issued SFAS No. 90 "Regulated

Enterprises - Accounting for Abandonments and Disallowances
of Plant Costs, an amendment of FASH Statement No. 71"

(SFAS 90). Among other things, the provisions of SFAS 90

require that when itbecomes probable that part of the cost ofa

generating plant willbe disallowed for rate-making purposes
and a reasonable estimate of the disallowance can be made, the
estimated amount of the probable disallowance shall be

deducted from the reported cost of the plant and recognized as

a loss for financial reporting purposes. Also, SFAS 90 allows the
capitalization ofAFDC only ifit is probable that such AFDC will
be included as an allowable cost for rate-making purposes.

In December 1987, the Company adopted SFAS 90 and
recognized the NMP-2 disallowance for financial reporting
purposes. Accordingly, the effect of the NMP-2 disallowance was

recorded in the Company's financial statements for 1987. The
amount of the after-tax write-offin 1987 was $ 169.3 million
($11.90 per share), which amount was based on an estimate of
the Company's share of the disallowance. Any variance between
the final amount of the disallowance and the amount recorded
in 1987 willbe recorded in subsequent years. The write-off
resulted in a significant loss for calendar year 1987 and reduced
the book value per share of the Company's common stock from
$32.14 to $20.35, a reduction of 36.7%. In addition, the write-
off reduced the amount ofaccumulated retained earnings from
$ 180.8 million to $11.5 millionand the common equity
component of the Company's capital structure from 46.4% to
35.4% as of December 31, 1987. Refer to the Five-Year Sum-

mary of Consolidated Operations for the pro-forma effect of the
retroactive application of SFAS 90.

For purposes of determining the amount of the NMP-2

disallowance written offagainst income in 1987 pursuant to
SFAS 90, the Company assumed a commercial operation date
for NMP-2 ofApril30, 1988. Based on such assumed com-
mercial operation date, the total cost of the Company's interest
in NMP-2 was estimated to be $537.9 million ($390.1 millionof
cash expenditures and $ 147.8 million for AFDC). Based on that
estimated total cost and the accounting and rate-making
treatment ordered by the PSC in 1987 for implementation of
the Settlement, the Company's disallowance under the Settle-

ment, after reflecting the applicable federal income tax benefits
and a $26.1 million payment received from Niagara Mohawk,
related to the Settlement, is estimated to be $180.4 millionfor
rate-making purposes, and $ 169.3 million for financial
reporting purposes. As stated above, the latter amount was

written off to income in 1987 pursuant to SFAS 90.
On August 20, 1988, the PSC determined in a Niagara

Mohawk rate proceeding that for purposes of rate-making,
NMP-2 commenced commercial operation on April5, 1988.

While such determination is not binding with respect to the
Company, the Company believes the PSC willuse similar
analysis in determining the commercial operation date for
purposes of establishing the Company's electric rates, although
no assurances can be provided. The attainment of a commercial
operation date prior to the April30, 1988 date assumed in
calculating the disallowance written off in 1987 should reduce
the final amount of the disallowance; however, the Company's

disallowance under the Settlement would be increased by any
event (other than an "extraordinary event" under the Settle-
ment) which caused the total cost of the Company's interest in
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NMP-2 to exceed the $537.9 millionestimate used to calculate
the disallowance written off in 1987, or by any additional costs
the PSC might allocate to the disallowance. Given (i) the
uncertainties to which a nuclear electric generating plant in the
initial stages of commercial operation may be subject, (ii) the
uncertainties relating to the PSC's implementation of the
Settlement and (iii) the inability to predict what actions the
PSC might take with respect to allocating additional costs to the
disallowance, no assurances can be provided that increases in
the disallowance willnot occur.

Dividends: On December 18, 1987, the Company declared a

quarterly dividend on its common stock of $ .425 per share
payable on February 1, 1988. This dividend represented a

decrease of $ .315, or 43%, from the previous quarterly dividend
rate of $ .74 per share. The dividend reduction was made
necessary principally by the reduced earnings resulting from
the recognition for rate-making purposes of the disallowance
under the Settlement. The rate-making treatment for the NMP-
2 disallowance was implemented by the PSC in the Company's
July 1987 electric rate order. This, coupled with the adoption of
SFAS 90 in 1987, which precluded the inclusion in income of
any AFDC on the disallowed investment, lowered earnings per
share for 1987, before the effect of the write-off, to $2.66 as

compared to $4.49 in 1986, a reduction of41%. As a result of
the lower earnings, itwas not possible to continue dividend
payments at the prior level.

On December 16, 1988, the Company increased the quarterly
dividend rate to $ .44 per share from $ .425 per share, an increase
of 3.5%. Although the final amount of the NMP-2 disallowance
is still uncertain, the Company believes the present quarterly
dividend rate of$ .44 per share is sustainable, barring
unforeseen problems.

Court Challenges: The Settlement has been challenged by
the State Consumer Protection Board, the Attorney General and
an Assemblyman from a district served by the Company in a

proceeding commenced by them in April 1987 in the Supreme
Court of the State of New York, Albany County, under Article78
of the Civil Practice Law and Rules (CPLR). These parties allege
that the expenditures in NMP-2 of $4.16 billionwhich the
Settlement allows to be recovered through rates greatly exceed

the prudently incurred costs which should be accorded rate
recovery and that the PSC's approval of the Settlement is
affected by an error of law, is arbitrary and capricious, is an
abuse of discretion, and is not based on substantial evidence.
Such parties request the court to direct the PSC to conduct full
evidentiary hearings into the amount of costs in NMP-2 which
were prudently incurred. Such proceeding has been transferred
for decision to the Appellate Division, Third Department. The

= Company considers these parties'osition to be without merit
and willoppose the relief sought by such parties. However,
should the relief sought be granted, the Company can make no
prediction as to whether the PSC, as a result of such. remanded

proceeding, might find that the prudently incurred costs of
NMP-2 should be less than $4.16 billion.

On July 10, 1987, the Company, together with the other
NMP-2 cotenants, commenced a judicial proceeding in the
Supreme Court of the State of New York, Albany County,
pursuant to Article 78 of the CPLR challenging the PSC's



accounting and rate-making implementation of the Settlement,
which had been ordered by the PSC in March 1987, and seeking

an order of the court directing the PSC: (i) to allow the

cotenants to recover through rates certain costs improperly
included by the PSC in the amounts not recoverable under the
Settlement, (ii) to deduct the cost disallowance under the
Settlement ratably against capitalization for rate-making
purposes and not exclusively against common equity, (iii) to
calculate the after-tax disallowance at a 46% tax rate, (iy) to
value nominally the tax benefits reserved for the

cotenants'hareholders,

and (v) to include such tax benefits in rate base.

The Company is unable to predict the results of such action.
In July 1986, the PSC issued an order approving the rate-

making principles for the phased inclusion in rates of the
prudently incurred investment and operating expenses

,
associated with the Company's interest in NMP-2. In 1987, an

Assemblyman from a district served by the Company
commenced a proceeding in the Supreme Court of the State of
New York, Albany County, under Article 78 of the CPLR

challenging the PSC's determination that the Company is

entitled to recover its prudently incurred investment in NMP-2

through rates. Such proceeding was transferred for decision to
the Appellate Division, Third Department. On October 20, 1988,

the Appellate Division, Third Department, issued a decision
confirming the PSC's determination and dismissing the
Assemblyman's petition. The Court's decision was not appealed

and the time for appeal has expired.

Contractor Litigation: On April 17, 1987, the Company and

the other cotenants filed a complaint commencing an action in
the Supreme Court of the State of New York, Onondaga County,

against Gulf+ Western, Inc., Crosby Valve Ei Gage Company and

Wickes Manufacturing Company with respect to problems
encountered with NMP-2's original main steam isolation valves

(MSIVs) which had been designed and fabricated by them. Such

problems caused a delay of seven months in the completion of
NMP-2. In their complaint, the cotenants allege, among other
things, that the MSIVs failed to perform in accordance with the
terms of the contract entered into for their design, fabrication
and delivery and seek damages of approximately $500 million
from the defendants. The Company cannot predict whether the
action willbe successful or the amount of damages, ifany,

which may be recovered.
On August 1, 1988, the Company and the other NMP-2

cotenants filed a complaint commencing an action in the
United States District Court for the Northern District of New

York against the following three corporations involved in the
, construction of NMP-2: Stone tk Webster Engineering

Corporation, the architect-engineer and construction manager

for NMP-2; and ITT Fluid Products Corp. and ITT Fluid
Technology Corp., successor companies to ITT Grinnel, which
fabricated and erected piping for NMP-2. The complaint seeks

damages for, among other things, breach of contractual and

professional obligations in the performance by said defendants

under their contracts which resulted in delays, redesign,
reconstruction and higher costs for the completed work. The

Company cannot predict whether the action willbe successful

or the amount of damages, ifany, which may be recovered.

The NMP-2 cotenants have entered into an agreement, dated

January 26, 1989, with the General Electric Company (GE)

relating to certain disputes which arose in connection with the
nuclear steam supply system (NSSS) portion of the
construction of NMP-2, providing for settlement, mutual
releases, and confidentiality of the specific elements of said

agreement. Said agreement provides that GE-willsupply certain

goods and services to the cotenants over a period ofyears

without cost or at a reduced cost. Among other things, GE will
supply engineering services which willimprove NMP-2's

technical specifications and which may ultimately result in the
increased capacity of NMP-2; software designed to help avoid

unplanned outages; other goods and services in support of
NMP-2; and goods and services relating to turbine upgrading
and maintenance at each of the cotenants'ther generating
facilities. The Company regards the agreement with GE as a

favorable settlement.
Said agreement provides for certain indemnification of GE

by the cotenants with respect to any future judgments
or'ettlementsagainst GE attained by other NMP-2 contractors in

lawsuits related to the NSSS portion of the construction of
NMP-2, limited, however, to the extent such judgments or
settlements result from successful NMP-2 cotenant claims

against such contractors.
Pending determination by the PSC of the allocation of the

benefits of the GE settlement between the Company's

shareholders and its customers, no portion of the present value

of the goods and services, included in such GE settlement

agreement, has been recorded as an asset on the Company's

balance sheet nor has any part thereof been included in income.

Nuclear Regulatory Commission: In December 1988, the

Company was advised by Niagara Mohawk that senior managers

of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) had recently
conducted their biannual review of the performance of nuclear

power plants licensed by the NRC. As a result of this review,

Niagara Mohawk was advised on December 20, 1988 by the NRC

that the Nine Mile Point Station (Units 1 and 2) was being
categorized as requiring close monitoring by the NRC. The

conclusion was based on a current NRC assessment of NMP-2's

performance in certain areas during the first year of its

operation and a June 1988 assessment of the overall

performance of said Unit 1. Further, the NRC Staff observed that
increased licensee and NRC management attention is needed to
ensure that performance improvement at the Nine Mile Point
Station is achieved. The Company has no ownership interest in
Unit No. 1 of the Nine Mile Point Station.

A public meeting of the NRC was held on December 21,

1988, wherein the need for increased licensee and NRC

management attention was confirmed; however, no special

conditions were set for the restart of NMP-2.

On October 1, 1988, NMP-2 began a scheduled maintenance

and inspection mid-cycle outage which was expected to be .

completed by the end of December 1988. Niagara Mohawk has

advised the Company that the outage has been extended to

February 1989 to effect repair and retest of a main steam

isolation valve, repair of generator retaining rings, replacement

of a generator coupling and repair and retest of six valves in the

residual heat removal system.

Nuclear Plant Decommissioning Costs: In July 1988, the
NRC adopted revised regulations governing the requirements
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for the provision by nuclear facility licensees of the costs of the
eventual decommissioning of nuclear facilities. These

'egulationsrequire the direct funding of such decommissioning
- costs at a substantially accelerated rate from what has
heretofore been required and could cause the Company to
increase its capital requirements by amounts which cannot be
currently determined. The owners of NMP-2 have until July
1990, to filewith the NRC a decommissioning plan which
complies with the new regulations.

Estimated decommissioning costs for NMP-2 are currently
being recovered in rates through an annual allowance and
charged to operations through depreciation charges. The
Company's 9% share of costs to decommission NMP-2, which is
expected to begin in the year 2027, is estimated to be
approximately $61 million ($12.5 million in 1988 dollars). The
current annual allowances for recovery are based on the PSC's

allowed decommissioning costs amounting to $324,000. This
amount is increased each year to reflect inflation. The Company
cannot now determine whether the NMP;2 decoinmissioning
costs presently allowed in rates by the PSC, or the estimated
costs to be contained in the decommissioning plan to be filed
with the NRC referred to above, willultimately be adequate to
decommission NMP-2 in accordance with then existing law,
regulation, technology and actual cost.

NOTE 3 - ELECTRIC RATE FILING

On April 15, 1988, the Company filed a proposal with the
PSC to reduce its base electric rates by $3 million (0.83%) for
the twelve-month period August 1, 1988 through July 31;1989
(Rate Year). Such a proposal was made possible primarily by
using noncash accounting items to offset increased expenses
and, therefore, is contingent on the PSC's adoption of the
accounting treatment proposed by the Company. The hvo most
significant accounting items are the recognition of unbilled
revenues to conform financial accounting and rate-making with
the'provisions of the Tax Reform Act of 1986 and the use of
"MirrorCWIP." MirrorCWIP is an accounting method adopted
by the PSC to provide more flexibilityin the utilization of the
financial benefits from the placement of CWIP in rate base
during construction. These benefits have traditionally been
amortized over the full useful life of the project. Under the
MirrorCWIP concept, the benefits would be returned to
ratepayers during the early years of a project when the need for
rate mitigation is the greatest. The most significant item of
expense to be offset by these accounting items was the
inc're'ased expenses for NMP-2. During the period August 1,
1988 through July 31, 1989, NMP-2 willhave been in
commercial operation for the entire hvelve-month period,
whereas rates for the prior twelve-month period only included
five and a half months of operating expenses for NMP-2.

The PSC established a proceeding to consider the Company's
rate reduction proposal. During the course of this proceeding,
after it became apparent that a final PSC decision could not be
rendered before the start of the Rate Year, the parties executed a

Stipulation and Agreement on Interim Measures (Interim
Stipulation) which was approved by the PSC on July 28, 1988.
One of the key provisions of the Interim Stipulation was that
the Company's electric rates were made temporary and subject
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to refund as ofAugust 1, 1988. Likewise, any of the accounting
items that are finallyapproved by the PSC willbe effective as of
August 1, 1988.

Following an extensive review of the Company's proposal by
the Staff of the Department of Public Service (Staff) and a series
of settlement conferences among all parties, the Staff and the
Company entered into a Stipulation and Agreement
(Stipulation) on October 13, 1988. The Stipulation, which is
subject to PSC approval, would resolve all issues, other than
return on common equity'which the parties have agreed to
litigate, and would provide for a $2,689,000 reduction in base
electric rates for the period August 1, 1988 through July 31,
1989. The Stipulation, which is based on a 12.7% return on
common equity and includes the use of $1.5 millionof Mirror
CWIP as a reduction to revenue requirements, provides that to
the extent the return on common equity finallyauthorized by

"

the PSC varies from 12.7%, the amount of MirrorCWIP
credited against revenue requirements willbe adjusted to
provide for the $2,689,000 base rate reduction. The Company
has taken the position that the authorized return on common
equity should be 13.4%.

Pursuant to its Settlement Guidelines, hearings were
directed by the PSC to provide any parties opposing the
Stipulation with a fullopportunity to present any objections.
The Company and the Staff filed testimony in support of the
Stipulation and their respective positions on the appropriate
return on common equity. The Consumer Protection Board
filed testimony in support of its position on the return on
common equity. The only party opposing the Stipulation was
the representative of a group of industrial customers who have
taken the position that additional unbilled revenues and Mirror
CWIP should be utilized to increase the amount of the rate
reduction. The hearings have been concluded and briefs and
reply briefs to the Administrative Law Judge have been filed.

On February 1, 1989, the Recommended Decision of the
Administrative Law Judge was issued. The Judge recommended
that the Stipulation be approved, that the Company's base
electric rates be reduced by $2,689,000 annually, effective
August 1, 1988, and that the allowed return on common equity
be 12.7%. The Company disagrees with the Judge'
recommendation on the return on common equity and,
accordingly, willfile a brief on exceptions with the PSC on
this issue.

Pending final action by the PSC, the Company has made
provision in its 1988 financial statements for refunding five-
twelfths (reflecting the period August 1, 1988 to December 31,
1988, the first five months of the Rate Year) of the $2,689,000
annual rate reduction and recording other adjustments
contained in the Stipulation, which is based on Staffs proposed

. 12.7% return on common equity. Among these other
adjustments was the use of $7,587,000 ofMirrorCWIP arid
$578,000 of deferred NMP-2 revenue to offset and eliminate the
July 31, 1988 balances of certain deferred charges and their
related deferred taxes. The earnings effect on the last five
months of 1988 of any variation between the return on
common equity finallyauthorized by the PSC and the 12.7%
level contained in the Stipulation willbe recorded in the first
seven months of 1989 (the last seven months of the Rate Year).
The larger rate reduction being advocated by such industrial
customers, ifadopted by the PSC, willnot affect earnings



because such reduction would be offset by the utilization of the
accounting credits discussed above. However, such larger
reduction would have an adverse effect on the Company's cash

flow, its cash coverage of total interest charges and other key
financial indices.

NOTE 4 - FEDERAL INCOME TAX

General: The Company's general policy with respect to
accounting for the federal income tax is to reflect in income the
estimated amount of income tax currently payable and to pro-
vide for deferred taxes on timing differences between book and
taxable income to the extent permitted for rate-making purposes.

Depreciation: In computing depreciation for federal income
tax purposes for years subsequent to 1980, the Company used

the Accelerated Cost Recovery System (ACRS) as prescribed in
the Economic Recovery 1hx Act of 1981 (ERTA), however, com-

mencing in 1987 the Company has complied with the changes

to ACRS required by the Vax Reform Act of 1986 (TRA-86).

Investment Tax Credit: TRA-86 repealed the investment tax

credit for property additions placed in service after December

31, 1985, except for property additions covered by the related

transitional rules. The Company's investment in the Danskam-

mer Generating Plant and NMP-2, as well as certain other
property additions, meets these transitional rules and therefore,
the related investment tax credit for these projects continued to
reduce federal income taxes in 1988 and 1987.

With respect to periods preceding TRA-86, the additional
investment tax credit which resulted from increasing the rate of
such credit from 4% to 10%, as provided by the Tax Reduction

Act of 1976, was deferred and is being amortized over the life of
the related property in accordance with a Statement of Policy of
the PSC. Effective July 18, 1981, the Company was authorized

by the PSC to defer the full 10% investment tax credit associated

with the Company's participation in NMP-2 to be subsequently
amortized over a period yet to be determined. The Company com-

menced full deferral of its investment tax credit on October 22,

1982, pursuant to PSC authorization and in accordance with ERTA.

Deferred Income TMt: A summary of the amounts deferred

or credited to income is as follows:

1988

Amounts Deferred

1987 1986 1988

(Thousands of Dollars)

Amounts Credited

1987 1986

Operating Income:
Tax effect of Danskammer coal

reconversion.
NMP-2 tax depreciation.
Accelerated cost recovery system.
Redemption of mortgage bonds.
NMP-2 property tax.
Class life depreciation.
Deferred electric construction overheads ....

Investment tax credit
Mass transit surcharge
Cost of removal
Sterling Project cancellation charges ...........

Deferred fuel and gas costs.
Deferred revenues —Danskammer coal re
Deferred revenues —NMP-2

Repair allowance
Danskammer tax depreciation

~ Capitalized interest.
Contributions in aid of construction ............

Unbilled revenue
Alternative minimum tax
Other.

conversion ....

NMP-2 Disallowance:
Current year effect ofadoption of SFAS 90 ....

Cumulative effect on prior years of
adoption of SFAS 90.

Total

Other Income:
NMP-2 preoperational expenses.
Current year tax depreciation benefit- NMP-2 ...

Investment tax credit
Other.

$
12,380
2,920

284
966
176

7,950
609
994

468

2,056
3,809
3,466
1,776

1 52?
39 381

1,524
4,906

468
6,898

S 46279

$ 7,619
5,807
2,463

79

1,294

1,176

5,418
723
480

42

(2,788)
1,869

1,876

812
26 870

3,298

650,
3,948

11,873

11 873

$ 42 691

2,636
1,756
1,483
1,363
1,304
(913)
865
558

29

4

~1096
~10 181

162

162

$~10 343

$ —

337
210
172

945
120

673
,408
348
396

1,162

447
791

2,167
3,241
3 304

~14 721

444
1,171

239
1,854

$ 16 575

- $ 151

64

235
234

49
150

953
450

1,701

(1,749)
497

2,296

731

1,202
1,614

~152)
8 426

424
123

547

12,955
I

45 431
58 386

S 67359

$ —
140
78

107
109

842
443

1,767
2,072
1,372
1,109

- 850
„. 8889

396
548
944

~9833
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Reconciliation: The following is a reconciliation of the
difference between the amount of federal income tax as reported

in the Statement of Income and the amount computed by
multiplying the income before tax by the statutory tax rate:

Net income (loss) .

Federal income tax.
Deferred income tax -net.
Income (loss) before tax..

1988

Amount

($000)

$ 43,804
(8,564)
29,704

$ 64,944

1987

%of
Pretax Amount

Income ($000)

$ (109,944)
9,702

~24,666
$ (124,910)

%of
Pretax

Income

1986

Amount

($000)

$ 64,884
32,254

510

$ 97,648

%of
Pretax

Income

Computed tax expense $ 22,081 34.0% $ (49,964) (40.0)% $ 44,918 46.0%

Increases (reductions) in computed
taxes resulting from:

NMP-2 disallowance.
AFDC..
Sterling cancellation charges..
Deferred fuel and gas costs —net.
Excess tax depreciation.
1hxes, pension and insurance costs

expensed on tax return and
capitalized on book. ~ .

Investment tax credit.
Cost of removal
Other deferred costs.
Repair allowance
Roseton Litigation Settlement.
Deferred NMP-2 revenue
Deferred NMP-2 expenses..
Unbilled revenue ..

Capitalized interest.
Nine Mile test generation .................
Contributions in Aid of

Construction.
Alternative minimum tax
Miscellaneous items- net.

Federal income tax................................

(398)
(337)
250
(63)

(18,136)

(0.6) 79,963 64.0
(0.5) (1,998) (1.6)
0.4 2,250 1.8

(0.1) (838) (0.6)
(27.9) (11,963) (9.6)

(14,604) (15.0)
2,745 2.8
2,068 2.1

(1,584) (1.6)

(3.0)
(0.5)
(5.1)

0.2

0.1
1.3

1.0

0.1

(1,546) (1.5)
913 0.9

(656) (0.7)
(347) (0.3)

259 0.3
(253) (0.3)

1,084 1.1

791
3,241

~237
(8,564)

1.2

5.0
(0.4)

(13.1)

1,202

(1,688)
9,702

1.0

(743)
7.8 32,254

(7,950) (12.2) (3,692)
(1,243) (1.9) (599)

(511) (0.8) (6,311)
(3,481) (5.4)

838 1.3 207
(1,074) (1.6) 22

(3,102) (4.8) 65
2,258 3.5 1,614

(2,082) (3.2) 1,311
591 0.9 121

Deferred income tax —net.
Total

29,704

$21,140
45.7
32.6%

24 668
$ (14,966)

~19.8) 510
(12.0)% $ 32,764

0.5
33.6%

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 96: In
December 1987, the FASB issued SFAS No. 96, "Accounting for
Income Taxes" (SFAS 96). This Statement requires a company
to adjust its deferred tax balances, adhering to enacted tax laws,
to reflect an estimate of its future tax liabilitybased on
temporary differences between book and tax bases.

Based on the studies it has performed to date, the Company
estimates that the cumulative net amount of income tax timing
differences for which deferred income taxes have not been

provided was approximately $ 150 millionat December 31, 1988.
Such differences would have no immediate effect on its results
of operation, but would result in recognition on the balance
sheet of additional amounts of income taxes to be paid in the
future and to be recovered from customers as a cost of service
through the regulatory process. SFAS 96 must be adopted not
later than the first quarter of 1990. The Company has not made
a final determination as to when itwilladopt SFAS 96 and the
method of adoption.-
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NOTE 5 —SHORT-TERM BORROWING
ARRANGEMENTS AND COMPENSATING BALANCES

Effective December 14, 1983, the Company entered into a

revolving credit/term loan facilitywith five commercial banks.
The revolving credit agreement is for a period of seven years, at
the end ofwhich the Company has the option to convert the
revolving credit agreement to a three-year term loan. The
revolving credit agreement provides for borrowing up to $70

millionand gives the Company the option of borrowing at
either the prime rate, or two other money market rates ifsuch

rates are lower. Such agreement also provides for the payment
of annual commitment fees on the unborrowed amount.
Compensating balances are not required under the revolving
credit agreement. In addition, the Company continues to
maintain confirmed lines of credit totaling $2 millionwith
three regional banks.

There was no short-term debt outstanding at December 31,
1988. The amount of outstanding short-term debt at December
31, 1987 was $4 million, consisting of commercial paper. All
commercial paper obligations are supported by the credit
agreements maintained with the banks.

NOTE 6 - CAPITALIZATION—CAPITALSTOCK

Common stock without par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized:

December 31, 1985..
Issued through public offering.
Issued under dividend reinvestment program.
Issued under customer stock purchase plan.
Issued under PAYSOP

December 31, 1986..
Issued under dividend reinvestment program..
Issued under PAYSOP.

Transferred to paid-in capital.
December 31, 1987

Issued under dividend reinvestment program.
December 31, 1988..

Shares
Outstanding

1,800,000
194,109
30,723

6,253
14,105,850

243,375
10,330

14,359,555
203,826

14,563,381

Amount
($000)

$214,464
57,686

6,273
1,034

228
279,685

6,149
245

(50,000)
236,079

3 955

$240,034

Without
Sinking Fund:

Series Current ~Throu h

Cumulative Preferred Stock, $ 100 par value; 1,200,000 shares authorized:

Redemption Price

Eventual
Minimum

Shares Outstanding

December 31,
1988 and 1987

With
Sinking Fund:

Total

4'/a%

4.75%
4.35%
4.96%
7.72%

-7.44%
8.40%

$107.00
106.75
102.00
101.00
101.00
103.08
102.80

1/31/93
5/31/92

$107.00
106.75
102.00
101.00
101.00

101.22
101.00

100.00
o

70,300
20,000
60,000
60,000

130,000
120,000
150,000
610,300

200,000
~ 810,300
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The cumulative preferred stock, without sinking fund, is

redeemable only at the option of the Company and the sum
payable per share is the then current redemption price plus
accrued dividends thereon. In the event of involuntary
liquidation, the redemption price is $ 100 per share plus accrued
dividends.

The cumulative preferred stock, with sinking fund, provides
for the annual retirement of8,000 shares, at $ 100 per share,
plus accrued dividends, on each March 30, commencing March
30, 1993. The dividend to be paid willbe adjusted each quarter
and willbe declared at a rate which is 1% per annum below the
highest of three specific U.S. Treasury rates. The rate willnever
be less than 6% or greater than 12.5% per annum. The adjusted
rates applied for each quarter of 1988 ranged between 7.72%
and 8A0%, compared with,the range of 6.28% and 8.72%
experienced during 1987 and 6.48% to 8.96% experienced
during 1986.

Expenses incurred on issuance of capital stock are
accumulated and reported as a reduction in total capital stock
and are not being amortized.

Paid-In Capital: On September 25, 1987, the Board of
Directors of the Company approved, pursuant to Section 516 of
the New York Business Corporation Law, the transfer of $50

millionfrom stated capital to capital surplus (paid-in capital) as

of September 30, 1987. The amount so transferred from stated
capital to capital surplus willbe subsequently available for the
payment of dividends on common and preferred stock, subject
to compliance with applicable regulatory requirements. It is not
the present intention of the Company to use such capital
surplus for the payment of dividends; however, the transfer so

approved by the Board of Directors willprovide the Company
with additional flexibilitywith respect to dividend payments in
the future.

Par Value Stock: At the Annual Meeting of Shareholders held
on April5, 1988, the shareholders approved a proposal to
authorize an amendment of the Company's Certificate of
Incorporation which would change the designation of Common
Stock from Common Stock without par value to Common
Stock with a par value of $5 per share. The effectiveness ofsuch
amendment is subject to the approval of the PSC, which
approval has not yet been received.

NOTE 7.—CAPITALIZATION- LONG-TERM DEBT

Details of long-term debt are shown below:

Series
First Mortgage Bonds

13

14 '/s%

8 '/s%

ll
7 '/sold

9 '/s%

7'/4%
9 '/P%%d

10 '/s%

6 '/4%

10 s/4o/o

8.375%

~Maturit Date

December 4, 1992
June 12, 1994.
September 1, 1994.
July 2, 1995.
January 15, 1999.
June 1, 2000
February 1, 2002
April 15, 2004.
November 1, 2005.
June 1, 2007
September 15, 2009.
December 1, 2028.

- $ 35,000
45,000
50,000
20,000
20,000
25,000
20,000-
15,000
20,000

4,500 .

20,000
16,700

291,200

$ 35,000
45,000
50,000
20,000
20,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
20,000
4,500

20,000

274,500

December 31

1988 1987
(Thousands of Dollars)

Promissory Notes issued in connection with the sale by the New York State Energy
Research and Development Authority of tax-exemp't pollution control revenue bonds:

1984 Series A
1984 Series B

1985 Series A
1985 Series B

1987 Series A
1987 Series B

October 1, 2014....
October 1, 2014
November 1, 2020 ..

November 1, 2020.
June 1, 2027.
June 1, 2027

16,700
16,700
36,250
36,000
33,700

9,900
149,250

16,700
16,700
36,250
36,000
33,700

9,900
149,250

Promissory Notes (net of sinking fund requirements):
4.85% December 1, 1995.

Secured Notes Payable of Subsidiary
Unamortized Premium and Discount on Debt —Net

'otal long-term debt

2,973
5,434

(252)
$448,605

6,500

(292)
$429,958
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The pollution control bonds, Series A and B, issued in 1984,
bear interest at 7 1/% per annum through September 30, 1989.
Thereafter, the bonds willbe subject to repricing and investor
tender on each October 1, commencing October 1, 1989. The
Company has a one-time option for each series to convert to a

long-term fixed rate at any annual tender date.
The pollution control bonds, Series A and B, issued in 1985

are variable rate obligations subject to weekly repricing and
investor tender. The Company has a one-time option for each
series to convert to a long-term fixed rate. The pollution control
bonds, Series A and B, issued in 1987 are also variable rate
obligations subject to weekly repricing and investor tender. The
Company has a one-time option for each series to convert to a
long-term fixed rate.

In its 1987 rate orders, the PSC allowed recovery of interest
cost on the 1985 and 1987 Series variable rate obligations at the

, rate of 3.7/o for the electric department and 4.0% for the gas
department and deferral of any variation above or below these

j rates for future rate treatment. During 1988, such rates ranged
from 4.125% to 7.75% for the 1985 Series, from 4.525/o to
8.15/o for the 1987 Series A and from 4.125% to 7.75% for the
1987 Series B.

Expenses incurred on debt issues and any discount or
premium on debt are deferred and amortized over the lives of
the related issues.

Secured notes payable of subsidiary consists principally of
term loans to finance the installation of a cogeneration facility
and related energy conservation equipment at a Massachusetts
manufacturing company. Such loans accrue interest at the
prime lending rate plus 3/4 of 1% and are amortizing in 60 equal
installments through December 31, 1993. Such loans are
secured principally by certain power purchase agreements and
project assets.

NOTE 8 —POST EMPLOYMENTBENEFITS

Retirement Income Plan: The Company has a

noncontributory retirement income plan (Plan) covering
substantially all of its employees. The Plan provides pension
benefits that are based on the employee's compensation and
years of service. Ithas been the Company's practice to provide
periodic updates to the benefit formula stated in the Plan.

Effective January 1, 1987, the Company implemented SFAS
No. 87, "Employers'ccounting for Pensions" (SFAS 87). The
Company's funding policy, since such implementation, is to
make annual contributions equal to the amount of net periodic
pension cost; but not less than the minimum requirement
under ERISA. The effect of this change was a reduction of
pension cost of $780,000 in 1987, the year of adoption.
Approximately 72% of the cost for the year 1988, 70% for the
year 1987 and 70%.for the year 1986 were charged to expense.
Pension costs for 1986 of $4,048,000 have not been restated
and, accordingly, are not directly comparable with expenses for
1988 and 1987.-

Net periodic pension cost for 1988 and 1987 includes the
followingcomponents:

Service cost —benefits earned during
the period.

Interest cost on projected
benefit obligation................................

Actual return on plan assets ...................
Net amortization and deferral ................

Net periodic pension cost...................

1988 1987

(in Thousands)

$ 3,443 $ 3,336

9,069
50

~9938
$ 2 624

8,204
(28,369)
19 846

S 3017

The following table sets forth the Plan's funded status at
September 30, 1988 and 1987:

1988 1987

(in Thousands)

Actuarial present value of benefit
obligations:

Accumulated benefit obligation,
including vested benefits
of $ 103,962 and $91,063.................... $ 106 122

Projected benefit obligation for service
rendered to date ................................. $ 131,827

Plan assets at market value .................... 145 923 fa)
Excess of plan assets over projected

benefit obligation..............................., 14,096
Unrecognized net (gain) ......................... (6,391)
Prior service cost not yet recognized in

net periodic pension cost ..................
Unrecognized net asset being amortized

over 15.25 years................................. (8,418)
Amount contributed to Plan during

fourth quarter . 711

Prepaid (pension liability)pension cost
recognised in the Balance Sheet....... ~$ 2) $

$ 92 144

$ 119,574
148 589

29,015
(20,715)

(9,054)

754

(a) At the valuation date, approximately 93I)( of the Plan's assets were invested
in equities and bonds. The remainder was invested primarily in convertible
securities and real estate.

The weighted average discount rate and rate of future
compensation levels used in determining the actuarial present
value of the projected benefit obligation were 7 1/2 percent for
1988 and 7 1/4 percent for 1987, and 6 percent for both years,
respectively. The expected long-term rate of return on Plan
assets was 8 1/2 percent for 1988 and 8 percent for 1987.

Other Post Employment Benefits: In addition to providing
pension benefits, the Company provides certain health care and
life insurance benefits for retired employees. Substantially all of
the Company's employees may become eligible for these
benefits ifthey reach retirement age while working for the
Company. These and similar benefits for active employees are
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provided through insurance companies whose premiums are
based on the benefits paid during the year. The annual
insurance premiums recorded by the Company for providing
those benefits were $5,316,000 for 1988, $4,639,000 for 1987,
and $4,109,000 for 1986.The cost of providing retirees with
those benefits is not separable from the cost of providing those
benefits for the active employees.

NOTE 9 - SALE OF RECEIVABLES

In November 1987, the Company entered into a program to
sell on a daily basis, without recourse, its accounts receivables
from retail customers. Such program provides the Company
with cash immediately and, therefore, reduces its working
capital requirements. The program also serves to improve the
Company's common equity ratio. The amount of the
outstanding receivables sold as of December 31, 1988 and 1987
were $28.8 millionand $35.5 million, respectively. The average
daily amount ofaccounts receivable sold was $33.6 million in
1988 and $32.7 million in 1987 and the weighted average
discount rate was 10.01% for 1988 and 9.786% for 1987.

The costs associated with the sale of receivables are charged
to operating expense and amounted to $3.3 million in 1988 and

$551,000 in 1987.

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENCIES

Roseton Plant: The Company currently has a 35% undivided
interest in the ownership and output of the 1,200 mw. Roseton
Plant. The Company is acting as agent for the cotenant owners
with respect to operation of the Roseton Plant. Generally, the
owners share the costs and expenses of the operation of the
Roseton Plant in accordance with their respective ownership
interests. The Company's share of direct operating expense for
the Roseton Plant is included in the appropriate expense
classification in the accompanying Statement of Income.

The Company has the option to purchase the interests of
Niagara Mohawk (25%) and of Consolidated Edison Company of
New York, Inc. (40%) in the Roseton Plant in December 2004.
Exercise of such option is subject to the approval of the PSC.

In order to make provision for anticipated requirements for
additional generating capacity commencing in the mid-1990's,
the Company and Niagara Mohawk have entered into an
agreement (Amendment) revising the option which the
Company has to buy Niagara Mohawk's interest in the Roseton
Plant. Pursuant to the Amendment, Niagara Mohawk willsell to
the Company a 2.5% interest in the Roseton Plant on December
31, 1994 and on each succeeding December 31, through and
including December 31, 2003, which willbe all of Niagara
Mohawk's interest in the Roseton Plant. In exchange, Niagara
Mohawk willhave the option to repurchase from the Company

up to a 25% interest in the Roseton Plant in December 2004.
The prices for the purchases willbe based on the depreciated
book cost of the Roseton Plant assuming straight-line
amortization to provide for a fullyamortized facilityas of
December 31, 2009. Pursuant to the Amendment, the Company
retains the option to repurchase Niagara Mohawk's remaining
interest in the Plantwhen the Plant reaches the end of its
physical life.
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By joint petition filed with the PSC on February 29, 1988,
the Company and Niagara Mohawk requested the PSC to
approve the transfers of interests in the Roseton Plant
contemplated by the Amendment. On July 19, 1988, the PSC

issued an order establishing a proceeding to consider such joint
petition. Among the issues identified by the PSC for
consideration in such proceeding are (i) the relationship of the
bidding process, set forth in a June 1988 PSC order applicable
to the major New York State electric utilities, to such transfers,
(ii) the potential for demand side management as an alternative
to the transfers contemplated by the Amendment and (iii)
certain technical, accounting and forecasting issues regarding
the information and studies submitted by the Company and
Niagara Mohawk in support of the joint petition. The
Administrative Law Judge of the PSC in the proceeding ruled,
on December 28, 1988, that although the transfers of interests
in the Roseton Plant contemplated by the Amendment are not
subject to mandatory bidding pursuant to the PSC's bidding
process order, ifthe proceeding demonstrates a need by the
Company for the additional capacity and the Company's
ratepayers are best served by seeking that capacity through
competitive bidding, itwould not be unreasonable for the PSC

to require Central Hudson to competitively bid such capacity
after such demonstration. This ruling is subject to interlocutory
appeal to the PSC and the Company has taken such appeal.

While the Company considers the matters raised by the PSC

regarding the jointpetition not to constitute valid reasons
which would preclude PSC approval of the transfers
contemplated by the Amendment, no prediction can be made as

to what action the PSC may ultimately take with respect to
these matters or when the PSC's final determination willbe
forthcoming.

Construction Program: Reference is made to "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations" for information regarding the Company's
construction program for the five-year period 1989-1993.

Nucle'ar Liabilityand Insurance: In August 1988, legislation
was enacted amending the provisions of the Price-Anderson Act
with respect to liabilityand insurance for federally licensed
nuclear facilities. Pursuant to the amended law, the
authorization of the NRC to enter into new indemnity
agreements with licensees of nuclear power plants has been
extended to August 1, 2007. Under the amended law, the
maximum public liabilitywhich can be imposed for a nuclear
incident at a licensed nuclear electric generating facility is

$7.216 billion,which amount is covered by (a) private insurance
amounting to $ 160 millionand (b) $7.056 billionprovided by an
industry retrospective rating plan established under the Price-
Anderson Act and regulations promulgated by the NRC
thereunder. Under such retrospective rating plan, in the event of
a nuclear incident at any nuclear unit in the United States
resulting in losses in excess of the $160 millionprivate
insurance, each other licensed nuclear unit can be assessed up to
$63 million to cover liabilities, subject to an additional
surcharge of $3.15 millionper nuclear unit in the event that the
funds provided by the retrospective rating plan were insufficient
to cover liabilityclaims and legal costs arising out of each

incident. The amounts which a nuclear unit can be assessed



under the retrospective rating plan are subject to increases for
inflation. The maximum annual assessment under the
retrospective plan is limited to $10 millionper unit per year for
each nuclear incident. Under the provisions of the amended law,

the Company's potential assessment pursuant to the retrospective

rating plan (based on its 9%%d ownership interest in NMP-2 and

assuming that the other NMP-2 cotenants were to contribute
their proportionate share of the potential assessments) would be

$5.67 million (subject to adjustment for inflation), and the
Company could be assessed $283,500 (subject to adjustment for
inflation) in respect to the additional surcharge, but would be

limited to a maximum assessment of $900,000 in any year with
respect to any nuclear incident. The public liabilityinsurance

coverage of $ 160 million required under the Price-Anderson Act
for NMP-2 is provided to Niagara Mohawk by American Nuclear
Insurers.

On October 20, 1988, the Company entered into an

agreement with Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL)
which provides for insurance to cover the additional costs of
replacement power incurred by the Company in the event of a

prolonged accidental outage of NMP-2. Under this insurance
arrangement, NEILwillpay up to $210,000 per week to the

Company to cover the additional costs of replacement power if
NMP-2 experiences a continuous accidental outage which
extends beyond twenty-one weeks. The payments for
replacement power willcontinue for fift-twoweeks after
expiration of the twenty-one week deductible period and
thereafter the insurer shall pay fiftypercent of the weekly
indemnity for an additional fifty-twoweeks. The annual
premium for this insurance coverage is $79,000. A one-time
reserve premium equal to thirteen percent (13%%d) of the annual
premium must be paid initially.The reserve premium is subject
to adjustment annually ifthe annual premium is changed.

Additional premiums may have to be paid under a retrospective
rating program. This insurance from NEIL is intended to help to
protect the Company against the possible economic effects of
being required to bear the costs of replacement power in the
event of a prolonged accidental outage at NMP-2. In circumstances
related to other nuclear plants, utilities have been required by
regulatory bodies to bear replacement power costs where
accidental outages have been attributed to the fault of the utilities.

Natural Gas Supply: The Company has long-term contracts
for the supply of natural gas with three pipeline suppliers,
which willremain in effect until terminated by either party
upon 12 months'rior written notice. A contract for the
purchase ofvaporized LNG was entered into during 1988 and
became effective on December 17, 1988. This contract will
remain in effect through March 31, 1993 and willcontinue
from year to year thereafter unless terminated by either party by
December 31, 1992, for the contract period beginning October

1, 1993, or any subsequent December 31, for the next
succeeding period beginning October 1. The Company also has

a contract for the storage of natural gas. Allsuch contracts are
under tariffs on filewith and approved by the FERC.

Takewr-Pay Gas Costs: Many interstate gas pipeline
companies face substantial liabilities under contracts with gas

producers which require the pipeline company to pay for a

minimum amount of gas whether the gas is actually taken from

the producer or not (take-or-pay costs). Pursuant to Order No.

500, issued in August, 1987, the FERC established a policy which
permits gas pipeline companies, pursuant to a fixed surcharge,

to pass up to 50% of their take-or-pay and contract reformation
costs tb their customers and which permits down-stream gas

pipeline suppliers to pass 100%%d of such costs passed to them by
up-stream pipelines to their customers. Since the issuance of
Order No. 500, certain gas pipeline companies have secured

authorization from the FERC to include certain amounts of
their take-or-pay and contract reformation costs in the rates

charged to their customers. Among these are two of the
Company's gas pipeline suppliers, Columbia Gas Transmission

(Columbia) and Tennessee Gas Transmission. In addition,
Columbia and Texas Eastern Gas tr ansmission, another of the
Company's gas pipeline suppliers, have included in the rates

charged to the Company take-or-pay or contract reformation
charges charged to them by their up-stream gas pipeline
suppliers. The Company has actively participated in FERC pro-
ceedings to oppose the imposition upon itof any pipeline take-

or-pay or contract reformation costs and has initiated court
review of certain FERC decisions which impose such costs on it.

By notice dated April20, 1988, the PSC requested comments

on whether New York State gas distribution companies should

be required to absorb any portion of the take-or-pay or contract
reformation costs charged to them by pipeline suppliers, on
how such charges should be allocated to customer classes and

on what rate mechanisms should be employed to recover any
customer portion of such costs. By order issued on May 4, 1988,

the PSC required all New York State gas distribution companies
to defer any take-or-pay or contract reformation costs included
in charges to them by pipeline suppliers pending the PSC's

determinations on the issues raised in its April20 request for
comments. A subsequent order issued on June 14, 1988,

modified the May 4 deferral order by allowing inclusion of
pipeline take-or-pay or contract reformation costs in charges by
New York State gas distribution companies for sales to ~

interruptible customers and for use as boiler fuel for electric
generation. The primary ground put forth by the PSC for
requiring gas distribution companies to absorb pipeline take-or-

pay or contract reformation costs is that sales estimates

provided by the gas distribution companies to the pipeline
suppliers may have misled these suppliers into committing for
more gas than could reasonably be expected to be sold. In
comments which it filed with the PSC, the Company has

contended that its sales estimates did not mislead any of its
pipeline suppliers, indicated that itwas pursuing all feasible

avenues to oppose the imposition on itof pipeline take-or-pay

liabilityand stated that there is no basis on which the
responsibility for its pipeline suppliers'ake-or-pay liabilitycan

be attributed to it. In addition, it is the Company's position that
the PSC lacks any authority to deny it recovery of costs included
in FERC approved gas rates and would intend to oppose any
attempt by the PSC to require it to absorb any take-or-pay or
contract reformation costs which are included in its pipeline
suppliers'ERC approved rates.

The Company is unable at this time to estimate the amount
of take-or-pay and contract reformation costs which may
ultimately be included in its pipeline suppliers'harges to itor
predict what action the PSC might take to require the Company
to absorb any portion of such costs. The final amount of such
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costs willdepend on FERC proceedings and court litigation, the
outcome ofwhich the Company is not able to predict. Depending
on the outcome of such proceedings and litigation, the final
amount of such take-or-pay and contract reformation charges
could be several milliondollars, which could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's future earnings, ifthe Company
were to be required by the PSC to absorb a substantial portion.

Accrued Employees'acation Pays The Company's
employees begin accruing vacation in July of each year for use
in the followingyear; the monthly accrual of days is based on
the number ofyears of service for each employee. However, for
rate-making purposes, vacation pay is recognized as an
allowable expense only when paid. Consistent with this rate-
making treatment, the Company accrued $3.1 millionand $3.0
million as of December 31, 1988 and 1987, respectively, as a
current liabilityfor an estimate of earned vacation pay and
recorded a deferred charge representing the future
recoverability of this cost.

4

Rental Expenses and Lease Commitments: The Company
has lease commitments expiring at various dates, principally for
real property and data processing equipment. None of these
leases involves any major facilities or any material
noncancelable rental commitments. Although certain items
meet the criteria for recording as capital leases, such
recognition would have no significant effect on the financial
statements. Therefore, all items are treated as operating leases
for rate-making and accounting purposes.

NOTE 11 - DEPARTblENTALINFORMATION

The Company is engaged in the electric and natural gas
utilitybusinesses. Certain information regarding these
segments is set forth in the following table. General corporate
expenses, property common to both segments and depreciation
of such common property have been allocated to the segments
in accordance with practice established for regulatory purposes.

1988

Electric
1987 1986 1988

(Thousands of Dollars)

Gas

1987 1986

Operating Revenues. $ 3?9 249 $374.951 $377 103 $ 59.136 $ 54 126 $ 61,448

Operating Expenses:
Fuel and Purchased Electricity.
Purchased Natural Gas...............
Depreciation and Amortization.
Other, excluding income tax

Total

126,119 134,072 144,620

29,636 26,017 22,875
127 405 110 474 108 346

27,131 33,413
2,146 2,019

17 250 16 101

31,981
2,302

18 504
283 160 270 563 275.841 52 787 46 527 51,533

Operating Income before Income le ...................
Federal Income Tax, including

,deferred income tax - net.

96,089 104,388 101,262 6,349

20 081 28 862 36 265 1 762

7,599 9,915

2,614 3,189

Operating Income

Construction Expenditures. $ 45387 $ 94286 $ 165894 $ 8085 $ 6406 $ 5288

$ 76 008 $ 75 526 $ 64 997 $ 4,587 $ 4.985 $ 6 726

Identifiable Assets at December 31*
Net UtilityPlant..
Construction Work in Progress.

Total UtilityPlant
Materials and Supplies.................

Total

$764,329 $460,080 $336,397
20 638 315 864 553,110

$ 55,418
4.518

$ 49,040 $ 47,196
5,131 2 625

784,967 775,944 889,507 59,936
23 110 18 795 19 666 3 445

54,171 49,821
3 568 3 358

$808 077 $ 794 739 $ 909 173 $ 63 381 $ 57 739 $ 53 179

* Other identifiable assets are considered to be corporate assets and have not been allocated between the electric and gas segments.
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NOTE 12 - SELECTED QUARTERLYFINANCIALDATA

(Unaudited)

Selected fin'ancial data for each quarterly period within 1987

and 1988 are presented below:

Operating
Revenues

AsOri inall Re orted
Earnings Per

Income Average
Available Share of

for Common
Operating Common Stock

Income Stock ~Outstandln

Restated*

Income
Available

for
Common

Stock

Earnings Per
Average
Share of
Common

Stock
~Outstandin

Thousands of Dollars ~Dollars
Quarter Ended:

March 31, 1987.
June 30, 1987.
September 30, 1987
December 31, 1987

$ 120,039
102,191
104,702
102,145

$ 22,678 $ 17,954 $1.27

17,924 12,597 .89

20,291 13,437 .94

19,617

$ (115,268)
8,667

424

(9,360)

$ (8.11)
.61

.03

(.65)

March 31, 1988..
June 30, 1988.
September 30, 1988.
December 31, 1988 ..

$ 122,656
102,665
106,658
106,406

$ 26,630 $ 15,737
18,704 8,219
20,450 9,453
14,811 4,642

$1.09
.57
.65
.32

* Restated for the effect of the'adoption of SFAS 90 (See Note 2).

MANAGEMENT'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIALCONDITIONAND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

CAPITALRESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As shown in the Statement of Cash Flows, the cash

expenditures related to the Company's construction program
amounted to $52.5 million in 1988; a decrease of $43.2

million from the $95.7 million expended in 1987. Also during
1988, $ 18 millionof the Company's first mortgage bonds
matured, the Company repurchased, at a discount, $3.5
millionof its 4.85% Promissory Notes due December 1, 1995

and it retired the $4 million of short-term debt which was

outstanding at December 31, 1987. These cash requirements
were financed from internal funds, the issuance of $4.0
millionof common stock under the Company's Dividend
Reinvestment Plan, the issuance of $ 16.7 millionof the
Company's first mortgage bonds to secure an equal amount of-
NYSERDA tax-exempt Pollution Control Revenue Bonds and
the receipt of $26.1 million from Niagara Mohawk pursuant to
the terms of the NMP-2 settlement. As a result of these
activities, at December 31, 1988, the Company had no short-
term debt outstanding, ithad $20.7 million invested in short- ~

term securities and it had $72.0 million of short-term credit
available.

Because its major construction program is completed, the
Company believes itwillcontinue to experience favorable cash

flows during the next five years. As shown in the table below, it
is presently estimated that funds available from internal
sources willfinance 90% of the Company's cash construction
expenditures for the five-year period 1989-1993. During this
same five-year period, total external financing requirements
are projected to amount to $ 140 million, of which $73.3

million is related to the redemption of maturing long-term
debt and mandatory sinking fund payments. In fact, for the
next hvo years external financing requirements, exclusive of
the $20.7 millionof temporary cash investments, are
currently projected to aggregate only $30 million.Thus the
Company's needs to access the capital markets in the near

term are minimal.
The following table sets forth by year for the five-year

period 1989-1993 estimates of construction expenditures,
internal funds, mandatory redemption of long-term securities
and working capital requirements:



1989 1990 1991 1992 1993
(Thousands of Dollars)

Total
1989-1993

Construction Expenditures (a):
Electric
Gas.
Common.
Connection to Iroquois Gas Pipeline (b) ...

Nuclear Fuel ..

Total.

$39,900
6,100

10,700

2 800
59 500

$41,400 $43,800
7,600 5,800

20,000(c) 11,800
2,000 11,700
3 100 300

74 100 73 400

$39,600
5,900

13,000
2,000
2 800

63 300

$40,600
6,100
8,900

4 900
60 500

$205,300
31,500
64,400
15,700
13 900

330 800

Internal Funds Available:
Depreciation Accruals.
Deferred Income Tax - Net.....
Other.

Total.

36,500 38,200 40,200 42,100 44,000 201,000
11,200 10,300 11,300 9,500 7,600 49,900
14 300 7 30D 6 800 910D 9 400 46 900
62 000 55 80D 58 300 60 700 61 000 297 800

Excess of Construction Expenditures
over Internal Funds. (2 500) 18 300 15 100 2 600 ~500) 33 000

Mandatory Redemption of
Long-Term Securities:

Long-Term Debt
Preferred Stock.

Total.

100 100 14,100 34,100

100 100 14 100 . 34,100

24,100
800

24 900

72,500
800

73 300

Working Capital Requirements ...

Total Cash Requirements.

7 400 6 600 6 800 ~ . 6 300 6 600 33 700

$ 5 000 $25 000 $ 36 000 $43 000 $31 000 $ 140 DDD

(a) Excluding allowance for funds used during construction (AFDC), a noncash item.
(b) See page 5 for a description of this project.-
(c) Includes $9 million for (i) a new control center and computer facilityand (ii) a new computer.

Estimates of construction expenditures are subject to
continuous review and adjustment, and actual construction
expenditures may vary from such estimates. The depreciation
accrual for NMP-2 assumes a 2.5% annual rate applied to the
allowed investment included in rate base. The assumed
amortization rate for the Danskammer coal reconversion
investment is 5%. The deferred income tax projections are
based on federal income tax law under the 1hx Reform Act of
1986.

The Company's year-end capital structure for the last three
years is as follows:

The reduction in the common equity ratio at December 31,
1987 resulted from the write-offof the Company's disallowed
investment in NMP-2 during the fourth quarter of 1987. For
additional information regarding the write-off, see Note 2.
Because the Company is not presently forecasting the need to
raise large amounts of new capital in the five-year period
1989-1993, it believes it can rebuild its common equity ratio
back to the 40% level during this period without the need for
any additional public offerings.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Long-term Debt......
Short-term Debt.....
Preferred Stock ......
Common Equity ....

1986

45.8%

8.4
45.8

100.0%

1987

54.3%
.5

9.8
35.4

100.0%

1988

53.5%

9.6
36.9

100.0%

The following discussion and analysis includes an
explanation of significant changes in revenues and expenses

during the years 1986, 1987 and 1988. Additional information
relating to changes between these years is provided in the
Notes to Financial Statements (Notes) on pages 28 through
41 of this Report.
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EARNINGS

Earnings per share of common stock are shown after
provision for dividends on preferred stock and are computed
on the basis of the average number of common shares

outstanding during the year. The number of common shares,

the earnings per share, the percentage change and the rate of
return earned on average common equity are as follows:

1986 1987 1988

Average Shares
Outstanding (000's) ............. 13,207

Earnings (Loss) Per Share ....... $4.49

% Increase (Decrease)
over Prior Year ....................

Return Earned on
Common Equity for
Regulatory Purposes ........... 14.7%

* Excludes effect of adoption of SFAS 90.

(4%)

14,230 14,473

$ (8.12) $2.63

N/A N/A

12.4%* 12.4%

The 4% decrease in earnings per share for 1986 resulted
primarily from a reduction in the rate of return on common
equity authorized by the PSC in its July 1986 rate order from
15.7% to 12.4%. The lower authorized return primarily
reflected the improved capital markets prevailing in mid-1986
as compared to early 1985.

The net loss for 1987 reflects the effect of adopting SFAS 90
and recording the write-offof the NMP-2 disallowance. The
write-offof the NMP-2 disallowance reduced earnings by
$ 10.78 per share and the reversal of $ 15.9 millionof AFDC

accrued on the disallowed NMP-2 investment in calendar year
1987 reduced earnings by $ 1.12 per share. Earnings for 1987,

excluding the effect of the $ 10.78 reduction due to the write-
offof the NMP-2 disallowance, would have been $2.66 per
share ($ 10.78 - $8.12).

Besides the effect of the write-offfor financial reporting
'urposes,1987 earnings were also adversely affected by the

rate order issued by the PSC in July 1987 which implemented
the rate-making treatment for the disallowed portion of the
Company's 9% interest in NMP-2. In addition to the exclusion
of the disallowed investment from rate base, the PSC, in
determining the Company's cost of capital, deducted the cost

disallowance exclusively against common equity rather than
proportionately across the entire capital st'ructure. Primarily
as a result of this latter action, the overall rate of return on

~ the Company's allowable plant investment was lowered to
10.36% as compared to 10.66% in the 1986 rate order.

The 3-cent reduction in 1988 per share earnings, when
compared to comparable 1987 per share earnings of $2.66,
resulted primarily from the effects of lower rates of return for
both the electric and gas departments. The 1988 results
reflected a lower return on common equity for the electric
department of 12.7% for the last five months of the year
compared to the 13.4% return previously authorized. Also, the
Company's gas rate reduction, which became effective on
September 1, 1987, lowered the return on common equity for
the gas department from 15.7% to 12.9%. Consequently, 1987

had eight months of earnings from the gas business based on
a 15.7% return on equity, whereas 1988 earnings were based

on a 12.9% equity return for the entire year.

OPERATING REVENUES

Total operating revenues decreased $66.3 million (13%) in
1986 and $9.5 million (2%) in 1987 but increased $9.3 million
(2%) in 1988. The decline in revenues for 1986 and 1987 was
caused primarily by lower fuel costs which resulted from lower
fuel prices in 1986 and the burning of coal as a fuel in 1987.

The lower fuel costs reduced the amount of revenues collected

through the electric fuel cost adjustment clause and also the
amount of revenues received from sales of electricity to other
utilities. Such reductions more than offset the growth in
revenue resulting from increased sales. In 1988, however, the
increases in revenues from higher sales of electricity and gas

were greater than the reductions resulting from lower base

rates for electric and gas service and lower fuel costs. Details
of the revenue changes are as follows:

1986

Increase or (Decrease from Prior Year

1987 1988

Customer sales.
Sales to other utilities..
Increases (decreases) in

base rates ..

Fuel cost changes reflected
in base rates.

Fuel cost adjustment
Deferred revenues
Miscellaneous.

Total

Electric Gas

12,611 71

(11,427)
(51,301)

(4,836)
1 513

~$ 59 549)

(1,724)
(283)

~1763)
$~6702)

$ 16,402 $ (3,003)
(22,511)

Electric Gas

(Thousands of Dollars)
$ 16,693 $ (2,186)

(12,285)

Electric Gas

$ 17,542 $ 6,343
(4,028)

9,098 (599) 297 (3,117)

(39,596)
22,225

1,425
288

~$ 2 152)

(4,043)
(2,692)
2 198

(27,621)
12,372
3,834
1 902

(63)
3,907

~2060)
$ 5 010~$ 7 322) $ 4 298
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Effective April 1985, th'e PSC revised the electric fuel cost
adjustment clause to provide for a partial sharing of fuel cost
variations, pursuant to an incentive/penalty formula. The
change adopted by the PSC requires an 85%/15% sharing, on
average, between the customers and the Company for the first
$20 millionofvariations in actual fuel costs from the
forecasted amounts which have been approved by the PSC for
a specific twelve-month period. Any variations in excess of $20
millionare credited or charged in total to the customers. See

Note 1, "Deferred Electric Fuel Costs."
Gross revenues from sales of electricity to other utilities

decreased 43% in 1986, 42% in 1987 and 23% in 1988. Under
its April 1985 rate order, the PSC imputed $ 11 millionof net
revenues in base rates. In its July 1986 Order, the PSC reduced

the imputed amount to $6.2 million. In its July 1987 electric
rate order the imputed amount was increased to $6.6 million.
The. imputed amount contained in the Stipulation in the
Company's pending electric rate case (see Note 3) is $4.2
million. The PSC requires an 80%/20% sharing between
customers and the Company of any variations from the
imputed amount, either higher or lower. The Company
reflects any credits or charges to its customers resulting from
these provisions through the electric fuel cost adjustment
clause. The following table sets forth the variation in actual
net revenue realized from the amounts imputed, the amount
credited, or charged, to retail customers through the electric
fuel cost a'djustment clause, and the amount of such net
revenue retained by the Company and recognized in income:

Variation in Actual Net Revenue from
Imputed Amounts ...............................

Customer Charge (Credit) .......................
Underrun Recognized by Company ........

1986

$ 3,204
~2563
~$ 641)

1987
(Thousands of Dollars)

$3,925
3,140

~$ 785)

1988

$ 267
214

~$ 53

The Company's largest customer is International Business
Machines Corporation (IBM). For the year 1988, sales to IBM

accounted for 18% of the Company's total electric revenues
and 4% of its total gas revenues.

Residential ....~..........

Commercial .............
Industrial .................

1986 1987 1988

6 6 8
0 ~ 6 8

13 2 2

Residential ......
Commercial ....

~ Industrial ........

Gas%

1986 1987 1988

8 3 8
8 2 16

12 5 16

Residential electric sales: Residential electric sales are
primarily affected by the growth in customers and the change
in kwh. usage per customer. Customer usage is also sensitive
to weather. Changes in these components are set forth in the
table below:

SALES

Total kwh. sales of electricity within the Company's service
territory increased 7% in 1986, 5% in 1987 and 5% in 1988.
Firm sales of natural gas, excluding sales to the electric
department, increased 8% in 1986, 3% in 1987 and 12% in
1988. Increases in sales by major customer classification are
set forth below:

Electric%

Commercial electric sales: In 1985 the New York Board of
Water Supply activated its pumping station for part of the year
causing sales to Other Public Authorities, a portion of the
commercial sector, to increase 16%. After adjusting for the
abnormal sales to the pumping station in 1985, commercial
sales increased 3% in 1986. Commercial sales increased 6% in
1987 due to a combination of a 3% increase in the number of
customers and a 3% increase in the usage per customer.,The
8% increase in commercial sales in 1988 reflected a 3%
increase in the number of customers and a 4% increase in
usage per customer.

Industrial electric sales: The 13% increase experienced
during 1986 resulted primarily from expansion by existing
customers. The 2% increase in both 1987 and 1988 reflected a

combination of customer growth and increased customer
usage.

Gas sales-firm; The following tables set forth customer
growth, changes in customer usage and heating degree days
for the residential and commercial classifications. Although
the changes in residential gas sales are primarily weather-
related, the growth in customers has been a positive factor
contributing to increased sales. Commercial sales are also
weather-sensitive.

Residential Sales %

Growth in number
of customers ...............

Change in average
'sage per customer ....

Change in heating
degree days .................
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Residential Sales %

1986 1987 1988

2 2 3

Growth in number
of customers ...............

Change in average
usage per customer ....

Change in heating
degree days .................

1986 1987 1988

2 3 3

6 0 5

5 2 3



Commercial Sales %

1986 1987 1988

Growth in number
of customers ...............

Change in average
usage per customer ....

Change in heating
degree days .................

7 7

0 (5)

5 2 3
l

In 1986 and 1987, sales to industrial customers increased
primarily due to customer growth. Firm gas sales to industrial
customers increased 16% in 1988, aided primarily by the
opening of a new metal container manufacturing company in
the service territory.

Gas sales-interruptible: Interruptible gas sales decreased

41% in 1986, decreased 4% in 1987 and increased 24% in
1988. The declines experienced in 1986 and 1987 were
attributed to the change in the competitive position of natural
gas with alternative sources for boiler fuel usage. The gas rate
decrease in September 1987 and a declining spot gas market
have helped to restore the competitive position of natural gas

as a fuel. During 1988 many interruptible customers, who had

turned to alternative fuel sources, were attracted back to gas

usage.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Changes in operating expenses from the prior year are set
forth below:

1986

Increase or Decrease from Prior Year

1987 1988

Amount Amount

(Thousands of Dollars)

Amount

Operating Expenses:
Fuel and purchased electricity...........................
Purchased natural gas.
Other expenses of operation ..............................
Maintenance.
NMP-2 operation and maintenance.... ~ .~............

Depreciation and amortization..........................
'Pres, other than income tax.......'......................
Federal income tax

Total.

$ (74,511)
(6,930)
5,084
4,849

645
876

1 372

J$ $68 615

(34.0)
(17.2)

8.9
32.6

2.7
2.1
3.6

(15.8)

$ (10,548)
(6,282)

550
899

3,269
1,828

~7978
$ 18 262

(73)
(18.8)

.9

4.6

13.1
4.3

(20.2)
(5.0)

$ (7,953)
4,850
6,665
1,449
6,497
3,775
3,574

~9633
$ 9 224

(5 9)
17.9
10.6

7.0

13.4
8.1

(30.6)
2.6

The most significant elements of cost are fuel and purchased
electricity in the Electric Department and purchased natural
gas in the Gas Department. Approximately 38% in 1986, 36%
in 1987 and 33% in 1988 of every revenue dollar billed in the
Electric Department was expended for the combined cost of
fuel used in electric generation and purchased electricity. The
corresponding figures in the Gas Department for the cost of
purchased gas are 54%, 50% and 54%, respectively.

In 1986, a combination of a 37% decrease in the average
price of fuel, a 14% decrease in purchased energy and a 2%
increase in generation resulted in decreased cost of fuel used
in electric generation of $57.9 million (34%) and decreased
cost of purchased electricity of $ 16.6 million (33%). In 1987
the cost of fuel used in electric generation and the cost of
purchased electricity decreased $6.2 million (6%) and $4.3
million (13%), respectively, which reflects the effect of lower
fuel costs due to the reconversion to coal firing of
Danskammer Units 3 and 4, a 1% decrease in system output
and a 13% decrease in purchases. The $8.0 million (6%)
decrease in 1988 of the combined cost of fuel used in electric

Avera e Cost $/MillionBtu

Nine Mile
Danskammer Plant Roseton Plant 2 Plant

1984
1985
1986
1987
1988

4.76
4.32
2.93
2.26
2.13

4.67
4.18
2.56
2.95
2.35 1.16
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generation and purchased electricity reflects the
effects of lower fuel costs resulting from the use of low cost
nuclear fuel at NMP-2, the burning of coal at Danskammer
Units 3 and 4 for a full year and a decrease in more costly
purchases from other utilities due to the availability of more
Company-owned generation.

The following table shows the average cost per millionBtu
for the Company's three major generating plants during the
last five years:



In an effort to keep the cost of electricity at the lowest
reasonable level, the Company purchases energy from
member companies of the New York Power'Pool whenever
such energy can be purchased at a unit cost lower than the
incremental cost of generating the energy in the Company's
plants.

The amount of natural gas purchased, excluding gas
.burned as boiler fuel, and the cost per mcf. during the last five
years are set forth in the following table:

Year
1984
1985
1986
1987
1988

Amount of Gas

Purchased - Mcf.
10,547,504
10,021,420
9,387,520
9,420,874.

11,004,936

$/Mcf.
4.15
4.14
3.64
3.04
3.00

The lower volumes of gas purchased during 1986 and 1987
result from lower sales of interruptible gas.

The $5.1 million (9%) increase in other expenses of
operation for 1986 was primarily caused by increased liability
insurance premiums, increased wages and related fringe
benefits, increased environmental expenses and increased
research and development expenses. In 1987, the $550,000
(1%) increase is primarily due to the net effect of higher
employee wages, increased cost of the Company's end use .

efficiency program and lower research and development
expenses. The $6.7 million (11%) increase for 1988 in other
expenses of operation is primarily due to higher employee
wages and related fringe benefits, increased cost of the
Company's end use efficiency program, higher insurance
costs, increased costs incurred in connection with complying
with environmental regulations and the fees paid for the sale
of accounts receivable. The fees for the accounts receivable
program, which amounted to $3.3 million in 1988, however,
are offset by savings in the cost of capital.

Maintenance expenses increased $4.8 million (33%) for
1986 primarily due to a major overhaul of Units 2 and 4 at the
Danskammer Plant and Unit 2 at the Roseton Plant, and
increased transmission and distribution maintenance,
primarily repairs of substation equipment. Increased
maintenance expenses from a devastating snow storm in
October 1987, partially offset by lower maintenance expenses
for the Company's generating units and lower expenses for

'aintainingits electric transmission substation equipment,
resulted in an overall increase of $900,000 (5%) for 1987. The
incremental costs of the October snowstorm amounted to'
approximately $5 million, an amount which was 14 times
greater than the $352,000 which was reflected in electric
rates. The Company received permission from the PSC to
defer 75% of the cost ($3.73 million)over a three-year period
commencing August 1, 1988 and itwrote off to income in
1987 the 25% ($ 1.24 million) related to the rate year which
commenced August 1, 1987. Pursuant to the provisions of the
Stipulation in the Company's pending rate case, MirrorCWIP
willbe used to offset these deferred storm costs (see Note 3).
The $ 1.4 million (7%) increase in 1988 maintenance expense

was primarily due to a $2.0 million increase in the cost for-
maintaining the Company's generating units. This increase
reflected a major overhaul of Unit 1 at the Roseton Plant and
an additional normal overhaul at the Danskammer Plant
because Unit 3 was undergoing reconversion to coal-firing in
1987 and consequently did not require its annual overhaul.
Maintenance expenses for the rest of the Company's facilities
were $600,000 less than 1987 because 1987 expenses included
$ 1.24 million for the abnormal snow storm.

As more fullydiscussed in Note 2, NMP-2 was deemed to
have commenced commercial operation on April5, 1988.

Consequently, operating expenses, taxes and depreciation
pertaining to operation subsequent to that date have been
included in the Company's financial results for 1988. Most of
the additional expenses were provided for through the rate-
making process. However, the operation and maintenance
expenses exceeded the amounts either provided for in rates or
deferred by $652,000 and, consequently, reduced 1988 per
share earnings by 3 cents. Under the terms of the Stipulation,
only 80% ($3,644,000) of the NMP-2 operation and maintenance
labor and invoice expenses projected for the Rate Year are
reflected in rates. The Company is authorized to defer any
excess expenses over such amount up to $911,000 (20% of the
amount of expenses projected for the Rate Year). Any such
deferred expenses willbe recovered in the future, plus
carrying charges, to the extent the Company can establish that
such expenses are just and reasonable and not subject to the
cost recovery limitations related to the NMP-2 Settlement.
The amount of such deferred expenses at December 31, 1988
was $379,600 (5/12 of $911,000).

The Company's total provision for depreciation amounted
to 3.31% in 1986, 3.45% in 1987 and 3.37% in 1988 of the
original cost of average depreciable property. The 1987
provision reflects the commencement of depreciation on the
Danskammer Coal Reconversion investment. The 1988
provision reflects the commencement of depreciation on
NMP-2 and an increase in the amortization rate for the
Danskammer coal reconversion project', pursuant to the
Stipulation, from 3.4% to 5.0%, effective August 1, 1988. The
ratio of the amount of accumulated depreciation to the cost of
depreciable property at December 31 was 40.8% in 1986,
34.9% in 1987 and 26.2% in 1988. The decrease in this ratio
for 1987 reflects the completion of the Danskammer coal
reconversion project while the further reduction in 1988
reflects the transfer of the NMP-2 investment from
construction work in progress to plant in service.

State and local taxes'levied on gross revenues decreased

$ 1.3 million in 1986, remained stable in 1987 and decreased

$66,000 in 1988. Property taxes, including school taxes,
increased $ 1.4 million, $ 1.2 millionand $4.3 million in 1986,
1987 and 1988, respectively. Of the $4.3 million increase in
1988, $2.3 millionwas due to the commencement of
commercial operation of NMP-2. The Temporary Metropolitan
Business Tax Surcharge increased $316,000 in 1986 and

$249,000 in 198? and decreased $298,000 in 1988. These three
categories of taxes accounted for the substantial portion of the
total increases in operating taxes.

See Note 4 for a detailed analysis and reconciliation of the
federal income tax.



OTHER INCOME AND INTEREST CHARGES

Details of the Allowance for Funds used During
Construction are set forth below:

Nine Mile 2 Plant
Danskammer Coal Reconversion.
Other

Total.

Weighted Average Rate

See Notes 1 and 2 for additional information on this subject.

1986 1987 1988

(Thousands of Dollars)

$ 25,013 $ 4,352 $ 320

5,753 . (161)
959 785 674

$ 31 725 $ 4 976 $ 994

10.23% 8.90% 9.11%

Total interest charges (excluding AFDC) increased $3.5
million (8%) in 1986, decreased $ 1.5 million (3%) in 1987 and
decreased an additional $2.9 million (7%) in 1988. The

following table sets forth some of the pertinent data on the
Company's outstanding debt:

1986 1987 1988
(Thousands of Dollars)

Long-Term Debt:
New Debt Issued.
Debt Retired
Outstanding at Year-end:

Amount (including current portion) ..:....
Effective Cost.

$ 50,000
55,175

439,725
9.58%

$ 43,600
35,075

448,250
8.95%

$ 16,700
21,620

450,248*
8.89%

Short-Term Debt:
Average Daily Amount Outstanding ...

Weighted Average Interest Rate ..........

* Including $6.825 million debt of subsidiaries.

See Notes 5 and 7 for additional information on this subject.

$ 10,400 $ 3,598
7.0% 7.84%

FINANCIALINDICES

Selected financial indices for the last five years are set forth
in the following table:

Pretax Coverage of Total Interest Charges:
Including AFDC
Excluding AFDC..

Pretax Coverage of Total Interest Charges
and Preferred Stock Dividends.

Percent of Construction Expenditures
Financed from Internal Funds.

AFDC and MirrorCWIP as a Percentage
of Income Available for Common Stock ....

Effective Tax Rate

1984

3.19 x
2.59x

2.51x

35%

~ 49%
36%

1985

3.17x
2.54 x

2.60 x

31%

50%
35%

1986

3.14x
2.43 x

2.66 x

17%

55%
34%

1987*

2.70 x
2.56x

2.23 x

53%

=16%

42%

1988

2.58x
2.53 x

2.14 x

100%

5%
33%

* For comparative purposes the effect of the NMP-2 disallowance under SFAS 90 has been excluded.
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The earnings tests contained in certain of the Company's
long-term debt instruments h'ave not been affected by the

w

NMP-2 disallowance. The earnings for such tests have been
calculated exclusive of the effect of the NMP-2 write-off.

COMMON STOCK DIVIDENDSAND PRICE RANGES

Dividends have been paid by the Company and its principal
predecessors for 85 years, and the common stock of the

Company has been listed on the New York Stock Exchange
'ince 1945. The price ranges and the dividends paid for each

quarterly period during the Company's last two fiscal years
were as follows:

First Quarter.
Second Quarter.
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter.

~Hi h

$ 317/a

28 Ya

27a/e

24 Ye

1987
Low Dividend

$ 24 e/4 $ ;74
24 Ye .74
23 .74
16 Ya .74

~Hi h
$ 21 Y4

21 Y4

20a/4

21'/e

1988
Low Dividend

$ 16'/e $ .425
187/e .425
19 a/e .425
197/a .425

On December 18, 1987, the Company reduced its quarterly
dividend payable February 1, 1988 to $ .425 per share as a

result of the disallowance of a portion of the Company's
investment in NMP-2. On December 16, 1988, the Company
increased the quarterly dividend payable February 1, 1989 to
$ .44 per share. Although the final amount of the NMP-2
disallowance is still uncertain, the Company'believes the
present quarterly dividend rate of $ .44 per share is sustainable,
barring unforeseen problems.

The number of registered holders of common stock as of
December 31, 1988 was 30,208. Of these, 29,669 were
accounts in the names of individuals with total holdings of
7,069,643 shares, or an average of 238 shares per account. The
539 other accounts, in the names of institutional or other

nonindividual holders, for the most part hold shares for the
benefit of individuals.

The Company's 4.85% Promissory Notes due December l,
l995 contain limitations upon the right of the Company to
declare or pay any dividend or make any other distribution on
(other than dividends or distributions payable in Common
Stock), or acquire for a consideration, any shares of its
Common Stock unless the aggregate of all such dividends,
distributions and considerations since December 3l, l964 does
not exceed an amount determined by a formula. At December
31, 1988, the amount of retained earnings available for
dividends on the Company's Common Stock under the
provisions of said 4.85% Promissory Notes was $ 16,316,000.
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DIRECTORS

MARJORIE S. BROWN
Millbrook,NY
Homemaker, active in civic and philanthropic
work, formerly executive in retailing and
promotional organizations;
Chairman of the Committee on Compensation and
Succession; Member of the Executive and
Retirement Committees

THEODORE J. CARLSON
Poughkeepsie, NY
Chairman of the Board;
Chairman of the Executive and Retirement
Committees;
Member of the Committees on Finance, on Audit
and on Compensation and Succession

JACK EFFRON
Poughkeepsie, NY
President, EFCO Products;
Member of the Committees on Compensation and
Succession and the Retirement Committee

RICHARD H. EYMAN
Noiwalk, CT
Senior Vice President, Brouillard Communications,
Division of J. IValter Thompson Company;
Chairman of the Committee on Audit; Member of
the Executive Committee and the Committee
on Compensation and Succession

HEINZ K. FRIDRICH**
Ridgefield, CT
IBMVice President-Manufacturing,
international Business Machines Corporation

EDWARD F. X. GALLAGHER
Newburgh, NY
President and Owner, Gallagher Transportation

, Services;
Member of the Retirement Committee

JOHN M. KINGSLAND
Boston,MA .

Private, Investor; Director ofSealed Air
Corporation; Member of the Committees on
Finance and'Audit

CHARLES LaFORGE
Rhinebeck, NY
President of Wayfarer Inns and Ovmer of Beekman
Arms; Member of the Committee on Finance

JOHN E. MACKIII
Poughkeepsie, NY
President and Chief Executive Officer; Member of
the Executive and Retirement Committees and the
Committees on Finance and on Compensation and
Succession

HOWARD C. ST. JOHN
Glenford, NY
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer, Ulster Savings Bank; Lawyer, Howard C.
St. John 8. Associates; Vice Chairman of the Board;
Chairman of the Committee on Finance;
Member of the Executive Committee and the
Committee on Audit

LEE C. WHITE*
Washington, D.C.
Lawyer, White, Fine ip Verville;
Member of the Committee on Audit

'Resigned 7/29/88
"Elected 10/28/88

OFFICERS OF THE BOARD TRANSFER AGENT&REGISTRAR

THEODORE J. CARLSON
Chairman of the Board; Chairman of the Executive
and Retirement Committees

HOWARD C. ST. JOHN
Vice Chairman of the Board and
Chairman of the Committee on Finance

MARJORIE S. BROWN
Chairman of the Committee on Compensation and
Succession

RICHARD H. EYMAN
Chairman of the Committee on Audit

COMMON 6 PREFERRED STOCK
Morgan Shareholder Services% ust Company
30 Broadway
New York, NY 10005

GENERAL COUNSEL
Gould Ec Wilkie
One Wall Street
New York, NY 10005

INDEPENDENTACCOUNTANTS
Price Waterhouse
153 East 53rd Stre'et
NewYork, NY 10022

OFFICERS

JOHN E. MACKIII
President and Chief Executive Officer

L. WALLACECROSS
Senior Vice President. Finance and Accounting

PAULJ. GANCI
Senior Vice President-Operations

WILLIAME. VanWAGENEN,
Senior Vice President-Administration and
Governmental Affairs

GLADYS L. COOPER
Secretary

JOHN F. DRAIN
Treasurer

ERIC M. MARKELL
Controller

CARL E. MEYER
Vice President-Engineering and Production

ALLANR. PAGE
Vice Presiden't-Customer Service

JOSEPH J. DeVIRGILIO,JR.
Assistant Vice President-Human Resources

HERBERT M. ROUND
Assistant Vice President-Nuclear Operations,
Energy Control, and Operations Services

JAMES E. SMITH
Assistant Vice President

WALTERA. BOSSERT, JR.
Assistant Secretary and Assistant measurer

CHARLES H. DENNY, JR.
Assistant Treasurer and Assistant Secretary

AFFIRtiIATIVEACTION POLICY

Central Hudson Gas fk Electric Corporation affirms that equal opportunity shall be provided for
all persons. This means that all personnel policies and practices, including those related to
compensation, benefits, transfers, promotions, training, tuition assistance and social and recreational
programs, shall be administered without regard to race, color, age, sex or national origin. Recruiting
and hiring practices shall be administered to assure fulfillmentof the Company's equal employment
opportunity objective.

Central Hudson Gas 6: Electric Corporation affirms that it willnot discriminate against any emp! oyee
or applicant for employment because of physical or mental handicap in regard to any position for
which the individual is qualified. This means that all personnel policies andpractices, including
those related to employment, promotion, demotion or transfer, training, compensation, benefits and
termination, shall be administered without discrimination based upon physical or mental handicap
against qualiTied handicapped individuals.
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